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IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliance by
the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notice / documents including Annual Report can be sent through e-mail to the
Shareholders. Further, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules framed thereunder and the recent Circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), electronic copies of the Notice of
the 22d (Twenty Second) Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 will be sent to all the
Shareholders whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s). Shareholders may note that the Notice of
the 22rd AGM and the Annual Report 2021-22 will also be available on the Company’s website (at www.sikkoindia.com), on the websites of
the Stock Exchange where the Equity Shares of the Company are listed, i.e., National Stock Exchange of India Limited (at www.nseindia.com)
and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) (at www.evoting.nsdl.com).
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L51909GJ2000PLC037329
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Whole-time Director
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BANKERS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Mr. Rupen Patel Chairman Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar Chairman

Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Member Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Member

Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar Member Mr. Rupen Patel Member

Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani Member Mrs. Alpaben Kumbhani Member

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Chairman Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited

Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, J. R. Boricha Marg,Lowe
Mr. Rupen Patel Member Parel (E), Mumbai, Maharashtra - 400 011.

Email: support@purvashare.com; Web: www.purvashare.com
Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar Member Tel: +91 22 - 23012517/8261
STATUTORY AUDITOR SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s.D G M S & Co., Chartered Accountants,

217/218, Manek Centre,
P.N. Marg, Jamnagar - 361 001

Mr. Anand Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary

Office No. 415 - 416, “Pushpam”, Opp. Seema Hall, Anandnagar
Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad - 380 015.

REGISTERED OFFICE

MANUFACTURING UNITS

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up

Stand, Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.
Tel No.: +91 79 6616 8950;
Email: compliance@sikkoindia.com

Web: www .sikkoindia.com

Pesticide Unit:

55 - A & B, Ambica Estate, At: Ivaya, Sanand Viramgam Highway,
Taluka: Sanand, District: Ahmedabad - 382110.

Fertilizer Unit:

193/2 & 193/02/2, Ambica Estate, At: Ivaya, Sanand Viramgam
Highway, Taluka: Sanand, District: Ahmedabad - 382110.
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NOTICE OF 22ND (TWENTY-SECOND) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 224 (twenty-second) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Sikko Industries Limited will be held on
Tuesday, September 27, 2022 at 04:00 P.M. IST through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following
businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, together
with the Reports of Board of Directors and the Auditor thereon.

In this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 and the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807), Managing Director who retires by rotation and being eligible,
seeks re-appointment.

Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment, executive and non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation. Mr. Jayantibhai
Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807), Managing Director who was appointed on October 1, 2021 as Managing Director, and is the longest-serving
member on the Board, retires by rotation and, being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

To the extent that Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807), Managing Director is required to retire by rotation, he would need to be
reappointed as such. Therefore, shareholders are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the approval of
the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the reappointment of Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807), Managing
Director as such, to the extent that he is required to retire by rotation.”

Registered Office For and on behalf of Board of Directors
508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, For, Sikko Industries Limited
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur,

Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director
Date: August 12, 2022 DIN: 00587807

NOTES TO SHAREHOLDERS FOR AGM:

1. Pursuant to the MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No.
19/2021 dated December 8, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022 (the “MCA
Circulars”) and all other relevant circulars issued from time to time, physical attendance of the Members to the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) venue is not required and AGM be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members
can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue of the meeting shall be the registered office of the
Company.

The detailed procedure for participation in the meeting through VC/OAVM is as per note given at the end of Notice and available at the
Company’s website www.sikkoindia.com.

2. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standard II on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) are also annexed.

3. Though, pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member is entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote on his/her behalf, since this AGM is being held pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy
Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4. Institutional/Corporate Shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format)
of its Board Resolution or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the Annual General
Meeting through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent to the
Scrutinizer by email through their registered email address to csanandlavingia@gmail.com with copies marked to the Company at
compliance@sikkoindia.com and to National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under
Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Inline with the aforesaid Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of AGM along with Annual Report
2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company,/ Depositories.
Member may note that Notice and Annual Report 2021-22 has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.sikkoindia.com and
the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.nseindia.com. The Notice can also be accessed from
the website of NSDL i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.
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7. Those shareholders who have not yet registered their e-mail address are requested to get their e-mail addresses submitted, by following the
procedure given below;

a) In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front
and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
compliance@sikkoindia.com.

b) In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client
master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to compliance@sikkoindia.com.

c) Alternatively, member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and Password by proving the details
mentioned in Point (a) or (b) as the case may be.

d) Interms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting
facility.

e) Itis clarified that for permanent submission of e-mail address, the shareholders are however requested to register their email address,
in respect of electronic holdings with the depository through the concerned depository participants.

f)  Those shareholders who have already registered their e-mail address are requested to keep their email addresses validated with their
depository participants / the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, PSIPL to enable servicing of notices / documents /
annual Reports electronically to their e-mail address.

8.  Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the route map of the venue of the Meeting is not annexed hereto.

9. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM or who would like to ask questions or
registered themselves as Speaker, are requested to write to the Company mentioning their name demat account number/folio number,
email id, mobile number at compliance@sikkoindia.com on or before September 17, 2022 so as to enable the management to keep the
information ready. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM.

10. The Register of Directors” and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other
documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode.

11. In case of joint holders attending the AGM together, only holder whose name appearing first will be entitled to vote.

12.  PROCESS AND MANNER FOR MEMBERS OPTING FOR VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS AND PARTICIPATING AT
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM:

i.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020 and
SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the businesses to
be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL, as the Authorized e-voting agency
for facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as e-voting
system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

ii.  There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will not be
closed. Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the
Depositories as on the Cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 21, 2022, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well
as e-voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this
Notice as intimation only.

iii. A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company after the dispatch of the Notice of the AGM and
prior to the Cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 21, 2022, shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote either electronically i.e. remote
e-voting or e-voting system on the date of the AGM by following the procedure mentioned in this part.

iv. The remote e-voting will commence on 9:00 A.M. on Saturday, September 24, 2022 and will end on 5:00 P.M. on Monday, September
26, 2022. During this period, the members of the Company holding shares as on the Cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 21, 2022
may cast their vote electronically. The members will not be able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date and time mentioned
above and the remote e-voting module shall be disabled for voting by NSDL thereafter.

v.  Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

vi. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the Cut-
off date i.e. Wednesday, September 21, 2022.

vii. The Company has appointed CS Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting
the remote e-voting process as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM, in a fair and transparent manner.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR CASTING VOTES BY REMOTE E-VOTING:

The remote e-voting period begins on 9:00 A.M. on Saturday, September 24, 2022 and will end on 5:00 P.M. on Monday, September 26, 2022. The
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step1l. ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities
in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of Shareholders

Login Method

Individual = Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https:/ / eservices.nsdl.com either on a
Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value
added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Ifyouare notregistered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https:/ / eservices.nsdl.com.
Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https:/ /eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the
QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.’ App Store B Google Play

Individual  Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id and password.
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for
users to login to Easi / [Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will
have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the wuser is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https:/ /web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat Account Number and PAN
No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will
be provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual  Shareholders
(holding  securities in
demat mode) login through
their depository
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available

at abovementioned website.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e.
NSDL and CDSL:

Login Type Helpdesk Details

Individual =~ Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
holding securities in demat evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30
mode with NSDL

Individual ~ Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
holding securities in demat  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 or 022-23058542-43
mode with CDSL

B) Login Method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https:/ /www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member" section.
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https.//eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once
you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below:

Manner of holding shares ie. Your UserID is:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or
Physical

a) For Members who hold shares 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

in demat account with NSDL. . . . . .
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***]2***#**,

b) For Members who hold shares 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

in demat account with CDSL. X .. . .
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12*******¥#*kddk then your user ID is 12**#*#iiio

c) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

Physical Form. . . . . .
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the “initial password” which was communicated to you.
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the “initial password” and the system will force you to change your password.

c¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i.  If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password” is communicated to you on your
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the
.pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or
folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your “User ID" and your ‘initial password’.

ii.  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not
registered

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat
account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.  After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Step2. CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLY AND JOIN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM

How to cast your vote electronically and join Annual General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.  After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle
and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General
Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify /modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your
vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6.  You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access
by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link”
placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting
menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note
that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the
same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.
Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience
Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their name demat
account number/ folio number, email id, mobile number at compliance@sikkoindia.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:

1.  The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the
AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be
the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

CONTACT DETAILS:

Company 508 Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur, Ahmedabad 380051.

Tel : +91 79 6616 8950 / 6616 8951; Email: compliance@sikkoindia.com; Web: www.sikkoindia.com

Registrar and PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

Transfer Agent . . . . .
9, Shiv Shakti Industrial Estate, ].R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai - 400 011, Maharashtra

Tel: 022 23012517 / 8261; Email: support@purvashare.com; Web: www.purvashare.com

E-Voting Agency Email: evoting@nsdl.co.in

& VC/OAVM
NSDL help desk: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Scrutinizer Mr. Anand S Lavingia

Email: csanandlavingia@gmail.com; Tel No.: +91 79 - 4005 1702
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT/ APPOINTMENT AT THE 22N° ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard II)

Name Jayantibhai Kumbhani

Date of Birth April 10, 1966

Qualifications Bachelors of Science in Agriculture

Experience - Expertise in Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani is the original founder of the SIKKO GROUP. He has 33 years of experience

Specific functional areas - Job inagricultural field including 24 years of experience in agricultural business He looks after the marketing

profile and suitability department, administrative and finance Department of the Company. His skill helps the Company to
maintain the healthy relationship with clients, dealers, distributors and other stakeholders of the
Company.

No. of Shares Held 3054084 Equity Shares

Terms & Conditions No Change in the existing terms and conditions

Remuneration paid in FY 2021-22  Rs. 49.50 Lakh

Remuneration sought to be paid  No Change in the existing terms and conditions

Date of original Appointment January 15, 2003

Date of Appointment in current October 01, 2021
terms

Directorship held in other public  Nil
Companies*

Memberships / Chairmanships Memberships - 1 Committee
of committees of public
Companies**

Inter-se relationship with other Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani is brother of Mr. Ghanshyam M. Kumbhani and spouse of Mrs. Alpaben J.
Directors Kumbhani.

*  Excluding foreign companies, Section 8 companies and Struck off Companies

**  Includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Grievances and Relationship Committee.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
Sikko Industries Limited

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report of the business and operations of your Company, along with the Audited Financial statements,
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: ( in Lakh)
Particulars F.Y. 2021-22 E.Y. 2020-21
Revenue from operations 5,102.64 3,965.81
Other income 21.69 191.45
Total Income 5,124.34 4,157.26
Less: Total Expenses before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 4,746.55 3,703.09
Operating Profits before Depreciation, Finance Cost and Tax 377.79 454.16
Less: Finance cost 54.26 28.75
Less: Depreciation 62.51 59.55
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 261.01 365.87
Less: Current Tax 77.95 109.50
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets) (4.65) (3.45)
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (PAT) 187.70 259.82

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review, the Company has earned total income of X 5,124.34 Lakh as against the total income of ¥ 4,157.26 Lakh of previous
year which states 23.26% increase in the total income as compared to previous year. The profit before tax in the financial year 2021-22 stood at ¥
261.01 Lakh as compared to profit of ¥ 365.87 Lakh for last year and net profit after tax stood at X 187.70 Lakh compared to profit of ¥ 259.82 Lakh
for the previous year which state 27.76% decrease in profit of the Company.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors wish to conserve resources for future expansion and growth of the Company. Hence, no Dividend has been declared by the
Directors during the Financial Year 2021-22 (Previous Year - Nil).

AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES:

Your Directors do not propose transfer of any amount to the General Reserves. Full amount of net profit is carried to reserve & Surplus account
of the Company.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
During the year, there was no change in the nature of business carried out by the Company.
MIGRATION TO THE MAIN BOARD OF NSE:

The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on June 23, 2021, had proposed the Listing of equity shares of the Company on
Capital Market Segment (Main Board) of National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Members of the Company, through Postal Ballot, on
August 05, 2021, had also approved the proposed listing of equity shares of the Company on Capital Market Segment (Main Board) of National
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The NSE has granted final listing approval for the Listing of equity shares of the Company on Capital Market Segment (Main Board) of NSE and
the equity Shares of the Company are listed and traded on the main board of NSE with effective from October 22, 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review, there was no change took place in the authorized and paid-up share capital of the Company.

Authorised Share Capital:

The present Authorized Capital of the Company is ¥ 12,00,00,000/ - divided in to 12000000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10.00 each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital:

The present Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of the Company is X 11,20,00,000 divided in to 11200000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10.00 each.
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Constitution of Board:

The Constitution of the Board of Directors and other disclosure related to the Board of Directors are given in the Report on Corporate Governance.
Board Meeting:

Regular meetings of the Board are held, inter-alia, to review the financial results of the Company. Additional Board meetings are convened, as
and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. The Board meetings are generally held at
registered office of the Company.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 8 (Eight) times, viz June 04, 2021, June 23, 2021, September 04, 2021,
September 14, 2021, October 01, 2021, November 13, 2021, February 14, 2022 and March 29, 2022.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting are given in the Report on Corporate Governance.
Independent Directors:

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the Company has three Non-Promoter
Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all three Independent Directors of the Company meet all the
criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and they are Independent of Management.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on February 14, 2022 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board
as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
between Company management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on the website of the
Company at https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/ Terms-and-conditions-of-Independent-Director.pdf.

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 and
16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for financial
year 2021-22. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent
Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for Independent
Directors and are independent of the Management. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are in compliance with Rules 6(1)
and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration with the data bank of
Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year.
Information on Directorate:

During the year under review, Mr. Pravinbhai Mohanbhai Kumbhani, Non-Executive Director of the Company has tendered his resignation w.e.f.
May 25, 2021. The Board placed on record its appreciation for the guidance and contribution made by Mr. Pravinbhai Kumbhani during his
tenure on the Board. The Board of Directors of the Company in their Meeting held on June 04, 2021 has appointed Mrs. Alpaben Jayantibhai
Kumbhani (DIN: 00587848) as an Additional (Non-Executive) Director of the Company w.e.f. June 04, 2021 whose appointment was regularized
at the 21t Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company held on September 28, 2021. Further, the designation of Mrs. Alpaben
Jayantibhai Kumbhani has been changed from

Non-Executive Director to Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. October 01, 2021 via Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot and
Remote E-voting by the Members of the Company on October 15, 2021.

Again, the Board of Directors, in their meeting held on September 4, 2021, has also appointed Mr. Rupen Jayantibhai Patel (DIN: 09247614) as an
Additional (Non-Executive Independent) Director of the Company w.e.f. September 04, 2021. The Members of the Company, in their 215t Annual
General Meeting held on September 28, 2021, appointed him as an Independent Director of the Company to hold the office as such for a period
of five years i.e. up to September 03, 2026.

During the FY 2021-22, based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, the Members of the
Company through Postal Ballot and Remote E-voting on October 15, 2021, re-appointed Mr. Jayantibhai Mohanbhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807)
as Managing Director and Mr. Ghanshyambhai Mohanbhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587855) as Chairman and Whole-Time Director, for a second term
of five years from October 01, 2021 to September 30, 2026, liable to retire by rotation. Also Mrs. Mamtaben Hiteshbhai Thumbar (DIN: 07732851)
and Mr. Hasmukh Veljibhai Vavaiya (DIN: 07807509) re-appointed as Non-Executive Independent Directors, for a second term of five years from
February 10, 2022 to February 9, 2027 and May 04, 2022 to May 03, 2027, respectively, not liable to retire by rotation.

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association and Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Jayantibhai Mohanbhai
Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807), Managing Director of the Company retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. He, being eligible,
has offered himself for re-appointment as such and seeks re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends his appointment on the Board.
The relevant details, as required under Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”) and Secretarial Standards-II issued by ICSI, of the person seeking re-appointment as Directors are annexed to the Notice
convening the 22nd Annual General Meeting.

Key Managerial Personnel:

In accordance with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has on its Board, Mr. Ghanshyambhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587855) who
is acting as Chairman & Whole Time Director, Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807) who is acting as a Managing Director, Mr. Mukesh
Shah who is acting as Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Ankita Lunagariya, Company Secretary and Compliance officer, continued to be Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company during the Financial Year 2021-22.
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Performance Evaluation:

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees, chairman and individual directors
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in the following manners;

»  The performance of the board was evaluated by the board, after seeking inputs from all the directors, on the basis of the criteria such as the
board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning etc.

»  The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the criteria
such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

»  The board and the nomination and remuneration committee reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria
such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed,
meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.

»  Inaddition, the performance of chairperson was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

Separate meeting of independent directors was held to evaluate the performance of non-independent directors, performance of the board as a
whole and performance of the chairperson, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. Performance
evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:
Pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a) In preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and that no
material departures have been made from the same;

b)  The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss
of the Company for that year;

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022 on going concern basis;

e)  The Directors had laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal Financial Controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)  The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Board of Directors, in line with the requirement of the act, has formed various committees, details of which are given hereunder:
1.  Audit Committee

2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The composition of each of the above Committees, their respective role and responsibility are detailed in the Report on Corporate Governance
annexed to this Report.

Audit Committee:

The Company has formed Audit Committee in line with the provisions Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As at March 31, 2022, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Rupen Patel (Non-Executive Independent Director) as Chairperson and Mr.
Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya (Non-Executive Independent Director), Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar (Non- Executive Independent Director) and Mr.
Jayantibhai Kumbhani (Executive Director) as Members.

Recommendations of Audit Committee, wherever/whenever given, have been accepted by the Board of Directors.
PUBLIC DEPOSIT:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from Shareholders and Public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under. Hence, the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India & the Provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Company Act, 2013
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Rules there under are not applicable.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The policy enables the employees to report to
the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of Company’s Code of Conduct. Further the mechanism
adopted by the Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievances and provide for adequate safe guards against
victimization of the Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee,
in exceptional cases. The functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the Whistle blowers has
been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company
www.sikkoindia.com.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:

Nomination and Remuneration Policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture. It enables the Company to attract
motivated and retained manpower in competitive market, and to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent with the goals of the
Company. The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. Annual increments are
decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee within the salary scale approved by the members and are effective from April 1, of
each year.

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website of the Company at
www.sikkoindia.com.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

The details of remuneration/sitting fees paid during the financial year 2021-22 to Executive Directors/Directors of the Company is provided in
Report on Corporate Governance which is the part of this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS & SECURITY:

Details of Loans, Guarantees, Investments and Security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the
notes to the Financial Statement. However, during the year under review, the Company has not made any loans, guarantees, investments and
security covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2022 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed at
https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/ uploads/2022/09/ Annual-Return-2021-22.pdf.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION:

There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel which
may have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee
and the Board for approval, if required. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseen
and repetitive in nature.

The Company has developed an Internal Guide on Related Party Transactions Manual and prescribed Standard Operating Procedures for the
purpose of identification and monitoring of such transactions. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded
on the Company’s website at www.sikkoindia.com.

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form
AOC-2 is annexed to this Report as “ Annexure - A”. There was no contracts, arrangements or transactions which was executed not in ordinary
course of business and/or at arm’s length basis.

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES:

The ratio of the remuneration of each executive director to the median of employees’ remuneration as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as
“ Annexure - B”.

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars of employees as required under Section
197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is
provided in a separate annexure forming part of this report. Further, the report and the accounts are being sent to the Members excluding the
aforesaid annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection in electronic form. Any Member interested in
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT:

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company, have occurred between the ends of financial
year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2022 to the date of this Report.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company has maintained adequate cost records as required to be maintained by the Company under the provisions of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made framed thereunder.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE:

To foster a positive workplace environment, free from harassment of any nature, we have institutionalized the Anti-Sexual Harassment Initiative
(ASHI) framework, through which we address complaints of sexual harassment at the all workplaces of the Company. Our policy assures
discretion and guarantees non-retaliation to complainants. We follow a gender-neutral approach in handling complaints of sexual harassment
and we are compliant with the law of the land where we operate.

During the year under review, there were no incidences of sexual harassment reported.
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m)
of the Act read with rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time is annexed to this Report as “ Annexure - C”.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation
process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The
mechanism works on the principles of probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify,
evaluate, monitor and manage both business and non-business risks.
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

Though the various risks associated with the business cannot be eliminated completely, all efforts are made to minimize the impact of such risks
on the operations of the Company. Necessary internal control systems are also put in place by the Company on various activities across the board
to ensure that business operations are directed towards attaining the stated organizational objectives with optimum utilization of the resources.
Apart from these internal control procedures, a well-defined and established system of internal audit is in operation to independently review and
strengthen these control measures, which is carried out by a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants. The audit is based on an internal audit plan,
which is reviewed each year in consultation with the statutory auditor of the Company and the audit committee. The conduct of internal audit is
oriented towards the review of internal controls and risks in its operations.

The Internal Auditor of the Company carry out review of the internal control systems and procedures. The internal audit reports are reviewed
by Audit Committee and Board.

Your Company has also put in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements commensurate with the size
and nature of operations of the Company. During the year, such controls were tested and no material discrepancy or weakness in the Company’s
internal controls over financial reporting was observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company strives to incorporate the appropriate standards for corporate governance. As stipulated in Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Report on Corporate Governance and Certificate of the Practicing Company
Secretary with regards to compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to the Board’s Report as “ Annexure - D”.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

In terms of Regulation 34, and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a review of the
performance of the Company, for the year under review, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, is presented in a separate section forming
part of this Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, M/s. D G M S & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Jamnagar (FRN: 0112187W), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till conclusion of the 24th Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the company to be held in the calendar year 2024.

The Notes to the financial statements referred in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any comments under
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Auditors’
Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT:

The Company has appointed Mr. Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company
for the financial year 2021-22, as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for
the financial year 2021-22 is annexed to this report as an “ Annexure - E-1".

The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 issued by Mr. Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, in relation to
compliance of all applicable SEBI Regulations/ Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder, pursuant to requirement of Regulation 24 A of the Listing
Regulations read with Circular no. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 (including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) is annexed to this report as an “Annexure - E - 2”.

The above reports do not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

REPORTING OF FRAUD:

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATES/ JOINT VENTURES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI:

The applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to “Meetings of the Board of Directors” and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have
been duly complied by your Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contributions made by the employees at all levels through their
dedication, hard work and commitment, enabling the Company to achieve good performance during the year under review.

Your Directors also take this opportunity to place on record the valuable co-operation and support extended by the banks, government, business
associates and the shareholders for their continued confidence reposed in the Company and look forward to having the same support in all future

endeavors.
Registered Office For and on behalf of Board of Directors
508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, For, Sikko Industries Limited

Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani  Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Place: Ahmedabad Chairman & Whole-time Director Managing Director
Date: August 12, 2022 DIN: 00587855 DIN: 00587807
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ANNEXURE-A

FORM NO. AOC-2 - PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

Forms for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to by the Company during the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, which

were not at arm’s length basis.

B. Details of Material Contracts or Arrangement or Transactions at Arm’s Length Basis:

Particulars

RPT-1

RPT-2

RPT-3

Name(s) of the related party and nature
of relationship

Sikkon Crop Technology

Enterprise in which Directors
is having significant influence.

Bhavnaben P Kumbhani

Relative of Directors

Pravinbhai M Kumbhani

Relative of Directors

Nature of contracts / arrangements / C & F Income, Marketing Godown Rent Factory Rent
transactions Income, Office Rent Income,

Purchase of Goods
Duration of the contracts / arrangements  F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2021-22 F.Y. 2021-22

/ transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions including
the value, if any

All the transactions entered by
the Company is at Market rate
and on arms’ length basis.

Total Purchase of I 160.43
Lakh

Total C & F Income of ¥ 2.08
Lakh

Total Marketing Income
Received of ¥ 20.76 Lakh

All the transactions entered by
the Company is at Market rate
and on arms’ length basis.

Total payment of Rent of I 3
Lakh

All the transactions entered by
the Company is at Market rate
and on arms’ length basis.

Total payment of Rent of I
3.81 Lakh

Date(s) of approval by the Board

June 23, 2021

June 23, 2021

June 23, 2021

Amount paid as advances, if any

Nil

Nil

Nil

Registered Office

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 12, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani
Chairman & Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587855

For, Sikko Industries Limited

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Managing Director
DIN: 00587807
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ANNEXURE-B

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

(Pursuant to Section 197(12) read with Rules made thereunder)

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made

there under.

A. Information as per Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

a. The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the financial year and the Percentage increase
in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial

year:
Sr. No. Name Designation 1;:;‘:;23{ mecll{iztriloe:r?;i;;ie’s P;;Zi:;:ge
remuneration

1 Jayantibhai Kumbhani Managing Director Remuneration 17.75:1.00 26.92
2 Ghanshyambhai Kumbhani ~ Chairman & Whole-time Director =~ Remuneration 13.99:1.00 Nil
3 Alpaben Kumbhani Executive Director Remuneration 2.15:1.00 -
4 Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable
5 Mamtaben Thumbar Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable
6 Rupen Patel Independent Director Sitting Fees Not Applicable Not Applicable
7 Mukesh Shah Chief Financial Officer Salary Not Applicable 0.76
8 Ankita Lunagariya Company Secretary Salary Not Applicable 6.67

b. The percentage increase/decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

Median remuneration of Employees decreased by 25.64% in F.Y 2021-22 as compared from F.Y. 2020-21.

c¢.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 32 Employees

d. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year
and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

The average salaries of the employees decreased by 17.27% over a previous year.

The Board of Directors of the Company affirmed that remuneration of all the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are as per the

Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Registered Office

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,

Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For, Sikko Industries Limited

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 12, 2022

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani
Chairman & Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587855

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Managing Director
DIN: 00587807

Annual Report 2021-22| 15



SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

ANNEXURE-C

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
[Pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
i.  Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Initiatives to integrate energy efficiency into overall operations are undertaken through design considerations and operational
practices. The key initiatives towards conservation of energy are:

o  Improved monitoring of energy consumption through smart metering and integration with building management systems;

o  Continuously replacing the inefficient equipment with latest energy efficient technology and up gradation of equipment’s
continually;

o Increasing the awareness of energy saving within the organization to avoid wastage of energy.
ii. Steps taken by the Company to utilize alternate source of energy:

o  Enhancing utilization of Renewable Energy Sources.

o  Exploring the feasibility of utilization of solar power at plant locations wherever possible.
iii. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

o  No major investments were made during the year on energy conservation equipment.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

i.  The efforts made towards technology absorption:
o  Development & Implementation of new technique & process for manufacture of products.
o  Evaluation of the alternative materials to reduce the cost of raw material
o  Solar technologies for common area, parking and street lighting.

ii. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:
o  Cost optimization
o  Improvement in quality of products.

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of financial year) - Not
Applicable

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research & Development - 9.85 Lakh

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(* in Lakh)
Particulars E.Y. 2021-22 E.Y. 2020-21
Export Sales - 32.74
Import Purchases - 3.93

Registered Office

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 12, 2022

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
For, Sikko Industries Limited

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani  Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Chairman & Whole-time Director Managing Director
DIN: 00587855 DIN: 00587807
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ANNEXURE-D

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2022:
COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Your Company believes that effective Corporate Governance is not just the framework enforced by the regulation but it is supported through the
principles of transparency, unity, integrity, spirit and responsibility towards the stakeholders, shareholders, employees and customers.

Good Corporate Governance requires competence and capability levels to meet the expectations in managing the business and its resources and
helps to achieve goals and objectives of the Company. It should provide proper incentives for the board and management to pursue objectives
that are in the interests of the Company and its shareholders and should facilitate effective monitoring.

The Company acutely and consistently reviews its systems, policies and internal controls with an objective to establish sound risk management
system and impeccable internal control system.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE:

The Company’s Governance Structure comprises a dual layer, the Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board at the apex level and the
Management Team at an operational level. The Board lays down the overall Corporate Objectives and provides direction and independence to
the Management Team to achieve these objectives within a given framework. This professional management process results in building a
conducive environment for sustainable business operations and value creation for all stakeholders.

The Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board play a fundamental role in upholding and furthering the principals of good governance
which translates into ethical business practices, transparency and accountability in the Company’s dealing with its stakeholders and in the
utilization of resources for creating sustainable growth to the benefit of all the stakeholders. The Board within the framework of law discharges
its fiduciary duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company.

The Boards composition and size is robust and enables it to deal competently with emerging business development issue and exercise
independent judgment. Committee of Directors assists the Board of Directors in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The Board has
constituted the following Committees viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee
which are mandatory Committees. The Management Structure for the day-to-day business operations and management of the Company is in
place with appropriate delegation of powers and responsibilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE:

The Company maintains the highest standard of Corporate Governance; it is the Company’s constant endeavor to adopt the best Corporate
Governance Practice.

ROLE OF COMPANY SECRETARY IN OVERALL GOVERNANCE PROCESS:

The Company Secretary plays a key role in ensuring that the Board and Committees procedures are followed and regularly reviewed. The
Company Secretary ensures that all relevant information, details and documents are made available to the Directors and Senior Management for
effective decision making at the Meetings. The Company Secretary is primarily responsible for assisting and advising the Board in conducting
the affairs of the Company, to ensure the compliances with applicable statutory requirements, to provide guidance to Directors and to facilitate
convening of Meetings. The Company Secretary interfaces between the Management and regulatory authority for governance matters.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Company has a broad-based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and is in accordance with best practices in Corporate Governance.

Constitution of Board:

The Company has a balanced board with optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors,
which plays a crucial role in Board processes and provides independent judgment on issues of strategy and performance. As on March 31, 2022,
board comprises of 6 (Six) Directors out of which 3 (Three) Directors are Promoter Executive Directors and remaining 3 (Three) are Non-Executive
Independent Directors.

Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to
time. The maximum tenure of the Independent Directors is in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013. All Independent Directors have
confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time and
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. The present strength of the Board reflects judicious mix of professionalism, competence and sound
knowledge which enables the Board to provide effective leadership to the Company.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them in other companies and do not hold the office of
Director in more than ten public companies as on March 31, 2022.

None of the Directors is a Director in more than ten Public Limited Companies. Further, none of the Directors on the Company’s Board is a
Member of more than ten Committees including Chairman of more than five Committees (Committees being, Audit Committee and Stakeholders
Relationship Committee) across all the companies in which he/she is a Director.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by them in other companies and do not hold the office of
Director in more than ten public companies as on March 31, 2022.

None of the Director of the Company is serving as a Whole-Time Director in any Listed Company and is holding position of Independent Director
in more than three Listed Company and none of the Director of the Company is holding position as Independent Director in more than seven
Listed Company.
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The composition of the Board is in conformity with the Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. As at March 31, 2022, the Board comprised

following Directors;

Directorship in

No. of Committee”

No. of

Date of Total other Listed Shares Inter-se
. Category cum Appointment Directorshi . in which in which Relation
Name of Director - . . Companies : . held as on
Designation at current p in other . Director  Director between
. excluding our : . March 31, .
term Companies~ C 18 18 2022 Directors
ompany Members Chairman
Mr. Ghanshyam Chairman and October 01, 1 - - - 721480 Brother of
Kumbhani Whole-Time 2021 Equity Jayantibhai
Director Shares Kumbhani and
(Promoter) brother in law of
Alpaben
Kumbhani
Mr. Jayantibhai Managing October 01, 1 - 1 - 3054084 Brother of
Kumbhani Director 2021 Equity =~ Ghanshyambhai
(Promoter) Shares Kumbhani and
Spouse of
Alpaben
Kumbhani
Mrs. Alpaben Executive October 01, - - 1 - 1118640 Spouse of
Kumbhani Director 2021 Equity Jayantibhai
(Promoter Shares Kumbhani
Group)
Mrs. Mamtaben Non-Executive February 10, - - 2 1 - No Relation
Thumbar Independent 2022
Director
Mr. Non-Executive  May 04, 2022 - - 2 - - No Relation
Hasmukhbhai Independent
. Director
Vavaiya
Mr. Rupen Patel Non-Executive ~ September 2 - 2 1 176000 No Relation
Independent 04, 2021 Equity
Director Shares

~ Excluding Section 8 Company, struck off Company, Amalgamated Company and LLPs.

~ Committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee across all Public Companies including our Company.

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as Director as specified in Section 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013.
A Certificate from Mr. Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad as stipulated under Regulation 34 read with
Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations, is attached as an “Annexure D - 1" to this Report.

Board Meeting:

Regular meetings of the Board are held at least once in a quarter, inter-alia, to review the quarterly results of the Company. Additional Board
meetings are convened, as and when required, to discuss and decide on various business policies, strategies and other businesses. The Board
meetings are generally held at registered office of the Company.

During the year under review, Board of Directors of the Company met 8 (Eight) times, viz June 04, 2021, June 23, 2021, September 04, 2021,
September 14, 2021, October 01, 2021, November 13, 2021, February 14, 2022 and March 29, 2022.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meeting and Annual General Meeting are given below:

Name of Director Jayantibhai Ghanshyambhai Alpaben Hasmukhbhai Mamtaben  Rupen Patel
Kumbhani Kumbhani Kumbhani Vavaiya Thumbar

No. of Board Meeting held 8 8 8 8 8 8
No. of Board Meeting 8 8 7 8 8 5
eligible to attend

Number of Board Meeting 7 8 7 8 8 5
attended

Presence at the previous Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

AGM

Familiarization Programmes for Board Members:

The Company has formulated a policy to familiarise the Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc., through various programmes. The details
of such familiarization programmes are disclosed on the website of the Company and the web link for the same is https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-
content/uploads/2022/04/Familiarisation-Programme-for-Independent-Directors.pdf
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Independent Directors:

In terms of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations, the Company has three Non-Promoter
Non-Executive Independent Directors. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all three Independent Directors of the Company meet all the
criteria mandated by Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under and Listing Regulations and they are Independent of
Management. A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held on February 14, 2022 to review the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and Board as whole and performance of Chairperson of the Company including assessment of quality, quantity and timeliness of flow
of information between Company management and Board that is necessary for the board of directors to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties. The meeting was attended by all the Independent Directors of the Company.

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors and Code for Independent Director are incorporated on the website of the
Company at https://sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/ Terms-and-conditions-of-Independent-Director.pdf.

The Company has received a declaration from the Independent Directors of the Company under Section 149(7) of Companies Act, 2013 and
16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations confirming that they meet criteria of Independence as per relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for financial
year 2021-22. The Board of Directors of the Company has taken on record the said declarations and confirmation as submitted by the Independent
Directors after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the conditions for Independent
Directors and are independent of the Management. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are in compliance with Rules 6(1)
and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect to registration with the data bank of
Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

None of Independent Directors have resigned during the year.
Code of conduct for the Board of Directors and senior management personnel:

In terms of Regulation 17(5) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the
Board has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The compliance of the
said code has been affirmed by them annually. The Code of Conduct also includes the duties of Independent Directors. A copy of the Code has
been put up on the Company’s website and same may be accessed at https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/ uploads/2022/04/Code-of-Conduct-
for-Board-Members-and-Senior-Management-Personnel.pdf.

A declaration signed by the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company is attached with this report.
Skills/expertise/ competencies of Board of Directors:

The Board Members are from diversified areas having the required knowledge. Competency, skills, and experience to effectively discharge their
responsibilities. The range of experience of the Board Members includes in the areas of Agrochemicals, Pesticides, Seeds, Banking & Finance,
Taxation and Legal.

The broad policies are framed by the Board of Directors. All strategic decisions are taken by the Board after due deliberation between the Board
Members which consists of Managing Director, Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director and Independent Directors.

The Company has identified and broadly categorized its Core Skills, Expertise and Competencies as mentioned hereunder:

Name of Directors
Jayantibhai Ghanshyambhai Alpaben Hasmukhbhai Mamtaben  Rupen

Kumbhani Kumbhani Kumbhani Vavaiya Thumbar Patel
Core Skills Strategic policy v 4 v R R v
formulation and
advising
Regulatory v v - v v v
framework
knowledge
Financial v v v v v v
performance
Advising on Risk v 4 - v v v
mitigation and
Compliance
requirements
Expertise Knowledge Agro v 4 v - v -
Chemical &
Pesticides
Industries
Commercial acumen v 4 v - - -
Able to guide in v v - - - R
building the right
environment for
Human Assets
Development
Competencies Strategic Leadership v v v v 4 v
Execution of policies v v v v v v
framed by the Board
Identifying the v 4 v - B v
growth areas for
expanding the
business in India
and outside India
Advising on v v v v v v
Business Risks &
environment.
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BOARD EVALUATION CRITERIA

During the year, the Board carried out an Annual Evaluation of its own performance and the performance of individual Directors, as well as
evaluation of the Committees of the Board. An indicative list of factors on which evaluation of the individual directors, the Board and the
Committees was carried out includes, Board structure and composition, degree of fulfilment of key responsibilities, establishment and delineation
of responsibilities to Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information flow, functioning of the Board/ Committees, Board culture and
dynamics, quality of relationship between the Board and Management, contribution to decisions of the Board, guidance/support to Management
outside Board/Committee meetings.

INSIDER TRADING CODE:

In accordance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“PIT Regulations”), as amended from time to time, the Board of
Directors of the Company had adopted the Codes of Fair Disclosure and Conduct (“the Code”) which in turn contains the Code of Conduct to
Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders and Code of Fair Disclosure Practices. This Code is applicable to all Directors, Promoters, such
identified Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives and other Connected Persons who are expected to have Unpublished Price Sensitive
Information relating to the Company. Ms. Ankita Lunagariya, Company Secretary of the Company is the Compliance Officer under the Code.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD:

The terms of reference of Board Committees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presently the Company has Three (3) committeesi.e.
Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing of terms of reference for committee
members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held
during the financial year and the related attendance, are provided in detailed hereunder.

There were no instances during the financial year 2021-22, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made by any committee of the
Board.

A. Audit Committee:

The Company has formed audit committee for the purpose of assisting the Board in fulfilling its overall responsibilities of monitoring financial
reporting processes, reviewing the Company’s established systems and processes for internal financial controls, governance and reviewing the
Company’s statutory and internal audit activities.

During the year, up to September 04, 2021, the Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given by the Board of Directors
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms reference of Audit Committee has been revised by the Board of Directors on September
04, 2021 to include the terms of reference specified in Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended which is briefed hereunder:

Role of Audit Committee:

1. Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;
3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4.  Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of
sub section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

c.  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

e. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

g. modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval and examine the financial
statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential
issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ Information Memorandum/ notice
and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter;

7.  Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of our Company with related parties subject to manner prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013;

9.  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;
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13.

14.
15.

16.
17.

18.
19.
20.
21.

22.

23.
24.

25.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of
the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or
a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment
of declared dividends) and creditors;

to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;
Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee;

reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore
or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of
coming into force of this provision and monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

To oversee and review the functioning of the vigil mechanism which shall provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and directors who avail of the vigil mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in
appropriate and exceptional cases;

Call for comments of the auditors about internal control systems, scope of audit including the observations of the auditor and review of the
financial statements before submission to the Board;

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., of the Company
and its shareholders

To investigate any other matters referred to by the Board of Directors.

Review of Information by the Audit Committee:

The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

1.

2
3
4.
5

6
7.
8
9

10.
11.
12.
13.

Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the audit committee;
Statement of deviations:

a.  Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of
Regulation 32(1).

b. Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice in terms of
Regulation 32(7).

review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by management;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

Powers of Audit Committee:

The Committee -

1.

N o g ok » N

May call for comments of auditors about internal control system, scope of audit, including observations of auditors and review of financial
statement before their submission to board;

May discuss any related issues with internal and statutory auditors and management of the Company;

To investigate into any matter in relation to above items or referred to it by Board;

To obtain legal or professional advice from external sources and have full access to information contained in the records of the Company;
To seek information from any employee;

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary;

Any other power as may be delegated to the Committee by way of operation of law.
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Composition, Meetings and Attendance of the Audit Committee:

Audit Committee meeting is generally held for the purpose of recommending the financial result and the gap between two meetings did not
exceed one hundred and twenty days. Additional meeting is held for the purpose of reviewing the specific item included in terms of reference of
the Committee. During the year under review, Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times on June 23, 2021, September 04, 2021, September 14, 2021,
November 13, 2021 and February 14, 2022.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Designation in Number of meetings during the FY 2021-22

Name of Member Category Committee —
Held Eligible to attend Attended
Mr. Rupen Patel* Independent Director Chairman 5 3 3
Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Independent Director Member 5 5 5
Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar** Independent Director Member 5 4 4
Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani Executive Director Member 5 5 4
* w.e.f. September 04, 2021 ** Up to September 04, 2021 and w.e.f. September 14, 2021

The Company Secretary of the Company acts as a Secretary to the Committee. The Constitution of the Audit Committee is in line with the
provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Statutory Auditors and
Internal Auditors of the Company are invited in the meeting of the Committee wherever requires. Chief Financial Officer of the Company is a
regular invitee at the Meeting.

Mr. Rupen Patel, the Chairperson of the Committee had attended last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 28, 2021.
Recommendations of Audit Committee have been accepted by the Board of wherever/whenever given.
B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Company has formed Nomination and Remuneration Committee for the purpose of assisting the Board to identify persons who are qualified
to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and such other matters specified
under various statute.

During the year, up to September 04, 2021, the Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given by the Board of Directors
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been revised by the Board
of Directors on September 04, 2021 to include the terms of reference specified in Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended which is briefed hereunder;

Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
Role of committee shall, inter-alia, include the following:

1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the board of
directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

2. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required of
an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities
identified in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

c.  consider the time commitments of the candidates.

formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend to the board of directors their appointment and removal.

6. to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of
independent directors.

7.  recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
Composition, Meetings and Attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting is generally held at least once in a year. Additional meetings are held for the purpose of
recommending appointment/re-appointment of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration. During the year under review,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 4 (Four) times viz, June 04, 2021, September 04, 2021, September 14, 2021 and February 14, 2022.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Designation in Number of meetings during the FY 2021-22

Name of Member Category Committee —
Held Eligible to attend Attended
Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Independent Director Chairman 4 4 4
Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar Independent Director Member 4 4 4
Mr. Alpaben Kumbhani* Executive Director Member 4 2 2
Mr. Rupen Patel** Independent Director Member 4 1 1
*w.ef. June 04, 2021 and up to October 01, 2021 ** w.e.f. October 01, 2021
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Performance Evaluation:

Criteria on which the performance of the Independent Directors shall be evaluated are placed on the website of the Company and may be accesses
at link https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Performance-Evaluation-Policy.pdf.

Remuneration of Directors:

The Company has not entered into any pecuniary relationship or transactions with Non-Executive Directors of the Company except payment of
Sitting Fees for attending the Meetings.

Further, criteria for making payment, if any, to non-executive directors are provided under the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
Company which is hosted on the website of the Company viz; https://sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Nomination-and-
Remuneration-Policy.pdf.

During the year under review, the Company has paid remuneration /sitting fees to Directors of the Company, details of which are as under:

(" in Lakh)

Name of Directors Designation Salary Si:ielli Commission oitt(i):i Total
Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani Managing Director 49.50 - - - 49.50
Mr. Ghanshyambhai Kumbhani Chairman & Whole-time Director 39.00 - - - 39.00
Mrs. Alpaben Kumbhani Executive Director 6.00 - - - 6.00
Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Independent Director - 0.30 - - 0.30
Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar Independent Director - 0.30 - - 0.30
Mr. Rupen Patel Independent Director - 0.30 - - 0.30

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee based on the performance of the Company in
accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration Policy within the limit approved by the Board or Members.

C. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The Company has constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee responsible for the Redressal of Shareholders grievances including non-
receipt of Annual reports, Demat / Remat of Securities etc. The Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar & Transfer agents of
the Company relating to the investors’ services and recommends measures for improvement.

During the year, up to September 04, 2021, the Committee carried out its functions as per the powers and roles given by the Board of Directors
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee has been revised by the Board of
Directors on September 04, 2021 to include the terms of reference specified in Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II to the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended which is briefed hereunder.

Role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
The role of the committee shall inter-alia include the following;:

1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-
receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent.

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring

timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

5. Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any statutory notification / amendment or
modification as may be applicable

Composition, Meetings and Attendance of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee:

During the year under review, Stakeholder’s Grievance & Relationship Committee met 4 (Four) times on June 23, 2021, September 04, 2021,
November 13, 2021 and February 14, 2022.

The composition of the Committee during the year and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Designation in Number of meetings during the FY 2021-22

Name of Member Category Committee —
Held Eligible to attend Attended
Mrs. Mamtaben Thumbar Independent Director Chairperson 4 4 4
Mr. Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya Independent Director Member 4 4 4
Mr. Rupen Patel* Independent Director Member 4 2 2
Mrs. Alpaben Kumbhani** Executive Director Member 4 4 4
* w.e.f. October 01, 2021 ** w.e.f. June 04, 2021

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer:

Ms. Ankita Lunagariya, Company Secretary of the Company is acting as the Compliance Officer of the Company.
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Investors” Complaints:

Number of complaints outstanding as on April 1, 2021 Nil
Number of complaints received from the Investors from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 Nil
Number of complaints solved to the satisfaction of the Investors from April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 Nil
Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2022 Nil
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
Annual General Meetings:
Financial Year Date Location of Meeting Time No. of Special Resolutions passed
2020-21 Tuesday,  Through Video Conferencing 04:00 PM -

September  Deemed Venue: Registered Office
28,2021 508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380051.
2019-20 Tuesday,  Through Video Conferencing 04:00 PM -
September  Deemed Venue: Registered Office
29,2020 508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380051.

2018-19 Monday,  Registered Office: 0400PM 1. Revision in Remuneration payable to Mr.
September 508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, Jayantibhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807), Managing

30,2019  Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Director of the Company.
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380051. 2. Revision in Remuneration payable to Mr.

Ghanshyam Kumbhani (DIN: 00587855), Chairman &
Whole Time Director of the Company.

Passing of Special Resolution through Postal Ballot in F.Y. 2021-22:
During the financial year 2021-22, the Company approached the shareholders through postal ballot. The details of the postal ballot are as follows:

Date of Postal Ballot Notice: July 03, 2021 Voting Period July 07, 2021 to August 05, 2021
Date of Declaration of Results August 05, 2021 Date of Approval August 05, 2021
Votes cast in favor Votes cast against
Resolution Description Type (?f No. of votes £
Resolution polled No. of Votes %  No. of Votes %
Migration of Listing / Trading of Equity Special 9,36,000 9,36,000 100.00 0 0.00
Shares of the Company from SME
Platform of National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE-EMERGE) to Main
Board of National Stock Exchange of
India Limited.
Date of Postal Ballot Notice: September 14, 2021 Voting Period September 16, 2021 to October 15, 2021
Date of Declaration of Results October 16, 2021 Date of Approval October 15, 2021
) L. Type of No. of votes Votes cast in favor Votes cast against
Resolution Description -
Resolution polled No. of Votes %  No. of Votes %
Re-appointment of Mr. Jayantibhai Special 86,56,000 86,56,000 100.00 0 0.00

Mohanbhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587807) as
Managing Director of the Company.

Re-appointment of Mr. Ghanshyam Special 86,56,000 86,56,000 100.00 0 0.00
Mohanbhai Kumbhani (DIN: 00587855) as

Chairman and Whole-Time Director of

the Company.

Change in Designation and appointment Special 86,56,000 86,56,000 100.00 0 0.00
of Mrs. Alpaben Jayantibhai Kumbhani

(DIN: 00587848) as Executive

Director of the Company.

Re-appointment of Mr. Hasmukh Special 86,56,000 86,56,000 100.00 0 0.00
Veljibhai Vavaiya (DIN: 07807509) as

Non-Executive Independent Director of

the Company.

Re-appointment of Mrs. Mamtaben Special 86,56,000 86,56,000 100.00 0 0.00
Hiteshbhai Thumbar (DIN: 07732851) as

Non-Executive Independent Director of

the Company.
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Scrutinizer:

Mr. Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary was appointed as the scrutinizer for carrying out the above postal ballots in a fair
and transparent manner.

Passing of Special Resolution through Postal Ballot in Current Financial Year:

Till the date of this report, the Company has not proposed passing of any Special Resolutions through Postal Ballot during the current financial
year.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
a. Financial Results:

The Company's Quarterly / Half-Yearly / Annual Financial Results are published in two newspapers namely, in Free Press Gujarat (English)
and Lokmitra (Gujarati) and are displayed on the website of the Company www.sikkoindia.com.

b. Website:

The Company’s website www.sikkoindia.com contains a separate dedicated section namely “Investors” where shareholder’s information is
available. The Annual Report of the Company is also available on the website of the Company www.sikkoindia.com in a downloadable form.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any presentations to institutional investors or to the analysts. Further, the result of the
Company has not been displayed any official news releases.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

Date, Time and Venue of 2274 Annual General Meeting;:

Day and Date: Tuesday, September 27, 2022
Time: 04:00 PM IST
Venue: Through VC/OAVM

Financial Year:

12 Months period starting from April 01 and ends on March 31 of subsequent year. This being financial year 2021-22 was started on April 1, 2021
and ended on March 31, 2022.

Financial Calendar:

(Tentative and subject to change for the financial year 2022-23)

Quarter ending Release of Results

June 30, 2022 Second week of August, 2022

September 30, 2022 Second week of November, 2022

December 31, 2022 Second week of February, 2023

March 31, 2023 End of May, 2023

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31, 2023 End of September, 2023
Dividend Payment Date:

Your Directors wish to conserve resources for future expansion and growth of the Company. Hence, no Dividend has been declared by the
Directors during the Financial Year 2021-22 (Previous Year - Nil).

Book closure date:

There being no physical shareholders in the Company, the Register of members and share transfer books of the Company will not be closed.
Listing on Stock Exchanges:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai - 400051.

Listing fees for the financial year 2022-23 has been paid to NSE.

Stock Code/Symbol:

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (Symbol: SIKKO)

Registrar and Transfer Agents:

Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited

Address: Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt., ] R Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai- 400 011;
Tel No.: +91 - 22 - 2301 2517/8261; E-mail: support@purvashare.com; Web: www.purvashare.com
Web link to raise queries: https:/ /www.purvashare.com/contact/

Share Transfer System:

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI LODR, as amended, securities can be transferred only in dematerialization form w.e.f. April 1, 2019, except
in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. Transfer of shares in electronic form is effected by the depositories with
no involvement of the Company.
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Market Price Data:

The Monthly high/low and the volume of the Company’s shares traded on stock exchanges and the Monthly high/ low of the said exchanges
are as follows:

Sikko Industries Limited Closing Price
Month
High Price Low Price Sikko Industries Limited Nifty Midcap 50
April, 2021 27.55 24.00 25.35 14,631.10
May, 2021 26.35 25.00 25.25 15,582.80
June, 2021 26.10 24.00 26.10 15,721.50
July, 2021 27.00 25.25 26.50 15,763.05
August, 2021 32.40 26.70 32.40 17,132.20
September, 2021 33.00 32.50 33.00 17,618.15
October, 2021 49.10 34.60 49.10 17,671.65
November, 2021 79.65 48.95 50.45 16,983.20
December, 2021 7210 44.65 65.15 17,354.05
January, 2022 73.75 57.10 60.70 17,339.85
February, 2022 60.75 50.10 51.25 16,793.90
March, 2022 64.90 48.35 54.50 17,464.75

Distribution of shareholding (As on March 31, 2022):
On the basis of number of shares held

Shareholders Number of Equity Shares held
No. of Shares
Number % of Total Number % of Total

1 500 630 79.05 52308 047
501 1000 32 4.02 25647 0.23
1001 2000 20 2.51 30947 0.28
2001 3000 8 1.00 19077 0.17
3001 4000 10 1.25 36275 0.32
4001 5000 5 0.63 24269 0.22
5001 10000 44 5.52 337981 3.02
10001 and above 48 6.02 10673496 95.30
Total 797 100.00 11200000 100.00

On the Category of Shareholders:

Shareholders Number of Equity Shares held
No. of Shares
Number % of Total Number % of Total
Promoter 2 0.25 3775564 33.71
Promoters Relative 6 0.75 4224436 37.72
Clearing Member 4 0.50 996 0.01
Corporate Bodies 1 0.13 160000 143
Resident Individuals 767 96.24 2976555 26.58
Hindu Undivided Family 15 1.88 58121 0.52
Non-Resident Indian 2 0.25 4328 0.04
Total 797 100.00 11200000 100.00
Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity (as on March 31, 2022):

Mode No. of Equity Shares Percentage
Demat 11200000 100.00
NSDL 9569411 85.44
CDSL 1630589 14.56
Physical 0 0.00

The equity shares are traded on National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments conversion date and likely impact on equity:

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments till date. Hence, there are no outstanding
GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments.

Plant Locations:
The Company’s plant is located at below mentioned address;
Pesticide Unit: 55 - A & B, Ambica Estate, At: Ivaya, Sanand Viramgam Highway, Taluka: Sanand, District: Ahmedabad - 382110.
Fertilizer Unit: 193/2 & 193/02/2, Ambica Estate, At: Ivaya, Sanand Viramgam Highway, Taluka: Sanand, District: Ahmedabad - 382110.
Phone: 079 - 66168950/ 51; Website: www.sikkoindia.com; Email: compliance@sikkoindia.com
Address of Correspondence:
i.  Sikko Industries Limited
Ms. Ankita Lunagariya - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Address: 508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380051.
E-mail: compliance@sikkoindia.com; Phone: 079 - 66168950/ 51
ii.  For transfer/dematerialization of shares, change of address of members and other queries
Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited
Address: Unit No. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt., ] R Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E), Mumbai- 400 011;
Tel No.: +91 - 22 - 2301 2517/8261; E-mail: support@purvashare.com; Web: www.purvashare.com
Web link to raise queries: https:/ /www.purvashare.com/ contact/
Credit ratings and any revision thereto:

The Company has not issued any debt instruments and does not have any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal involving
mobilization of funds in India or abroad during the financial year ended March 31, 2022. The Company has not obtained any credit rating during
the year.

DISCLOSURE:

Subsidiary Companies:

The Company does not have any subsidiary companies as at March 31, 2022.
Material Related Party Transaction:

During the year 2021-22, there was no materially significant related party transaction that may have potential conflict with the interests of the
Company at large. Attention of members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with the related parties set out in Notes to Accounts - Note
No. 39, forming part of the Annual Report.

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the Company’s website. The policy is uploaded on
the website of the Company at https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/ uploads/2022/04/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 read with
Section 133 of the Act.

Disclosure by Senior Management:

Senior Management has made affirmations to the Board relating to all material financial and commercial transactions stating that they did not
have personal interest that could result in a conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

CEO / CFO Certification:

The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI LODR pertaining
to CEO/CFO certification for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, which is attached as an “Annexure D-2" to this Report.

Compliances:

There were neither any instances of non-compliance by the Company nor there were any penalties or strictures imposed on the Company by the
Stock Exchange/ (s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to Capital Markets, during the last three years.

Risk Management:

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. During the year under review, the Management reviewed
the risk management and minimization procedure adopted by the Company covering the business operations of the Company.

Proceeds from public issues, rights issues, preferential issues etc.:
The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement.
Whistle Blower:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethic policy. The said mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of director(s)/ Employee(s) who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee in exceptional cases. The details of establishment of such mechanism has been disclosed in the Board’s Report. Further, the Policy on
Vigil Mechanism is available on the website of the Company at https://sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/04/Whistle-Blower-
Policy.pdf.
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Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company:

Total fees of * 1.00 Lakh for financial year 2021-22, for all services, was paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network
firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO
(I) OF SUB-REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46 OF LISTING REGULATIONS:

During the period starting from April 01, 2021 to October 21, 2021, the Company was listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of
India Limited and accordingly the Compliances in respects of Regulations 17, 174, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i)
and (t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, compliance status reported hereunder are for
the period October 22, 2021 to March 31, 2022 only.

Disclosures on the website:

Compliance
Item status (Yes/ No/ Web Address
NA)
Details of business Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/about/
Terms and conditions of appointment of Yes https:/ / sikkoindia.com/wp-content/ uploads/2021/02/ terms.pdf
independent directors
Composition of various committees of board of Yes https:/ / sikkoindia.com/wp-
directors content/uploads/2022/01/Composition-of-Committees-2.pdf
Code of conduct of board of directors and senior Yes https:/ / sikkoindia.com/wp-content/ uploads/2021/02/code-of-
management personnel conduct.pdf
Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/ Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/whistle-
Whistle Blower policy blower-policy.pdf
Criteria of making payments to non-executive Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/02/nomination-
directors remuneration-policy.pdf
Policy on dealing with related party Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/POLICY-
transactions ON-RELATED-PARTY-TRANSACTIONS.pdf
Policy for determining “material” subsidiaries N.A Our company does not have any subsidiaries companies, hence such
policy is not applicable on us.
Details of familiarization programmes Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-
imparted to independent directors content/uploads/2021/09/ FAMILIARISATION-PROGRAMME-
FOR-INDEPENDENT-DIRECTORS.pdf
Email address for grievance Redressal and Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/investors/
other relevant details
Contact information of the designated officials Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/investors/
of the listed entity who are responsible for
assisting and handling investor grievances
Financial results Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/investors/
Shareholding pattern Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/investors/
Details of agreements entered into with the N.A Our Company has not entered into any agreement with media
media companies and/or their associates companies and /or their associates.
Schedule of analyst or institutional investor N.A Our Company does not Schedule any institutional investor meet and
meet and presentations made by the listed presentations.
entity to analysts or institutional investors
simultaneously with submission to stock
exchange
New name and the old name of the listed entity N.A. -
Advertisements as per regulation 47 (1) Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/investors/
Credit rating or revision in credit rating N.A. As on date, there is no outstanding instruments.
obtained by the entity for all its outstanding
instruments
Separate audited financial statements of each N.A. Our company does not have any subsidiaries companies.
subsidiary of the listed entity in respect of a
relevant financial year
Whether company has provided information Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/investors/
under separate section on its website as per
Regulation 46(2)
Materiality Policy as per Regulation 30 Yes https:/ /sikkoindia.com/wp-content/ uploads/2021/02/ determing-
material-1.pdf
Dividend Distribution policy as per Regulation N.A Our Company was not fall under top 500 listed companies; hence it
43A (as applicable) was not applicable on us.
It is certified that these contents on the website Yes Yes it is certified that these contents on the website of the Company are

of the listed entity are correct.

correct.
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Regulation wise compliances:

Compliance status

Particulars Regulation Number (Yes/No/NA)
Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified criteria of 16(1)(b) & 25(6) Yes
‘independence’ and / or “eligibility’

Board composition 17(1), 17(1A) & 17(1B) Yes
Meeting of board of directors 17(2) Yes
Quorum of board meeting 17(2A) Yes
Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes
Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yes
Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
Fees/compensation 17(6) Yes
Minimum Information 17(7) Yes
Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes
Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes
Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes
Recommendation of board 17(11) Yes
Maximum number of directorships 17A Yes
Composition of Audit Committee 18(1) Yes
Meeting of Audit Committee 18(2) Yes
Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 19(1) & (2) Yes
Quorum of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting 19(2A) Yes
Meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 19(3A) Yes
Composition of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(1), 20(2) and 20(2A) Yes
Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20 (3A) Yes
Composition and role of Risk Management Committee 21(1),(2),(3),(4) N.A.
Meeting of Risk Management Committee 21(3A) N.A.
Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes
Policy for related party Transaction 23(1),(1A),(5),(6),(7) & Yes

®)

Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all related party transactions 23(2), (3) Yes
Approval for material related party transactions 23(4) N.A.
Disclosure of related party transactions on consolidated basis 23(9) N.A.
Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material Subsidiary 24(1) N.A.
Other Corporate Governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of listed entity 24(2),(3),(4),(5) & (6) N.A.
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24(A) Yes
Alternate Director to Independent Director 25(1) N.A.
Maximum Tenure 25(2) Yes
Meeting of independent directors 25(3) & (4) Yes
Familiarization of independent directors 25(7) Yes
Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9) Yes
D & O Insurance for Independent Directors 25(10) N.A.
Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes
Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from members of Board of Directors 26(3) Yes
and Senior management personnel

Disclosure of Shareholding by Non- Executive Directors 26(4) Yes
Policy with respect to Obligations of directors and senior management 26(2) & 26(5) Yes
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Disclosure relating to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has in place an effective mechanism for dealing with complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace. The details relating
to the number of complaints received and disposed of during the financial year 2021-22 are prescribed under Board’s Report forming part of this
Annual Report.

Secretarial Compliance Report:

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 read with Regulation 24(A) of the Listing Regulations, directed
listed entities to conduct Annual Secretarial compliance audit from a Practicing Company Secretary of all applicable SEBI Regulations and
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder. The said Secretarial Compliance report is in addition to the Secretarial Audit Report by Practicing
Company Secretaries under Form MR - 3 and is required to be submitted to Stock Exchanges within 60 days of the end of the financial year.

Accordingly, the Company has engaged the services of Mr. Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia (CP No. 11410), Practicing Company Secretary and
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for providing this certification. The Company is publishing the said Secretarial Compliance Report and the
same has been annexed as "Annexure - E-2” to the Board’s Report forming part of this Annual Report.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

During the period starting from April 01, 2021 to October 21, 2021, the Company was listed on EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of
India Limited and accordingly the Compliances in respects of Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of
sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was not applicable to the Company.

However, the Company has, during the period August 05, 2021 to October 21, 2021, on voluntary basis, complied with few of the requirements
specified in Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D
and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Further, during the period October 22, 2021 to March 31, 2022, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory requirements as
specified under Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR.

ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

The Company has adopted following non-mandatory requirements as prescribed under Regulation 27(1) read with Part E of Schedule II of the
SEBI LODR.

»  There is no modified opinion given in the Auditors” Report on Financial Statements.
»  The internal auditor directly reports to audit committee.
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE AUDITORS:

A Certificate from the Auditors of the Company Mr. Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, Ahmedabad confirming the
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause E of Schedule V of the SEBI LODR Regulations is attached
as an “Annexure - D - 3” to this Report.

Registered Office For and on behalf of Board of Directors
508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, For, Sikko Industries Limited
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani  Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Place: Ahmedabad Chairman & Whole-time Director Managing Director
Date: August 12, 2022 DIN: 00587855 DIN: 00587807

DECLARATION

I, Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani, Managing Director of Sikko Industries Limited hereby declare that as of March 31, 2022, all the Board Members and

Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for Directors and Senior Management Personnel

laid down by the Company.
Registered Office For and on behalf of Board of Directors
508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, For, Sikko Industries Limited

Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director
Date: August 12, 2022 DIN: 00587807
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Annexure D-

|L

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015)

To,
The Members of,

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur,
Ahmedabad - 380 051, Gujarat, India

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Sikko Industries Limited (CIN:
L51909GJ2000PLC037329) and having registered office at 508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur,
Ahmedabad - 380 051, Gujarat, India (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub Clause (10)(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the
portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of
the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Directors Director Identification Number Date of Appointment in the Company*
1. Mr. Jayantibhai Mohanbhai Kumbhani 00587807 15/01/2003
2. Mr. Ghanshyam Mohanbhai Kumbhani 00587855 01/01/2010
3. Mrs. Alpaben Jayantibhai Kumbhani 00587848 04/06/2021
4. Mrs. Mamtaben Hiteshbhai Thumbar 07732851 10/02/2017
5. Mr. Hasmukh Veljibhai Vavaiya 07807509 04/05/2017
6. Mr. Rupen Jayantibhai Patel 09247614 04/09/2021

*As per website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

It shall be noted that ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Anand Lavingia

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 26458 C P No.: 11410

Place: Ahmedabad Peer Review Certificate Number: 1589 /2021
Date: August 12, 2022 UDIN: A026458D000789869
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION
AS PER REGULATION 17 (8) OF THE SEBI LODR

To,
The Board of Directors of,

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur,
Ahmedabad - 380 051, Gujarat, India

CERTIFICATION TO THE BOARD PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17 (8) OF SEBI LODR

We, Jayantibhai Kumbhani, Managing Director and Mukesh Shah, Chief Financial Officer, hereby certify that in respect of the Financial Year
ended on March 31, 2022:

1. we have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year, and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

a. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

b. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations;

2. there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal
or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct;

3. we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness
of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control, if any, of which we are aware and the steps taken or proposed to be
taken to rectify the same;

4. we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: -
a. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

b. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

c.  Instances of significant fraud, if any, wherein there has been involvement of management or an employee having a significant role in
the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Registered Office For and on behalf of Board of Directors
508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple, For, Sikko Industries Limited
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand,
Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380 051.

Mukesh Shah  Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Place: Ahmedabad Chief FInacnial Officer Managing Director
Date: August 12, 2022 DIN: 00587807

32 | Annual Report 2021-22



Annexure D-

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(Refer Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,
The Board of Directors of,

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

508, Iscon Elegance, Nr. Jain Temple,
Nr. Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur,
Ahmedabad - 380 051, Gujarat, India

The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Sikko Industries Limited (“the Company”), contains details as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27,
Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”), with respect to Corporate Governance for the year ended
on March 31, 2022. This report is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and to be sent to the Shareholders of the
Company.

Management’s Responsibility

The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company including the preparation and
maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Corporate Governance Report.

The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the form of an opinion whether the Company has complied with the condition of
Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks associated in compliance of the Corporate
Governance Report with the applicable criteria. The procedures includes but not limited to verification of secretarial records and financial
information of the Company and obtained necessary representations and declarations from directors including independent directors of the
Company.

The procedures also include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate Governance Report on a test basis. Further, my
scope of work under this report did not involve me performing audit tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy
of any of the financial information or the financial statements of the Company taken as a whole.

Opinion

Based on the procedures performed by me as referred above and according to the information and explanations given to me, I am of the opinion
that

»  Since, the Company was listed on the Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited, the compliance with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as specified in regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 was not applicable to the Company during the period April 1, 2021 to October 21, 2021;

»  The Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in the Regulations 17 to 27, Sub-Regulation (2) of
Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V, to the extent applicable to the Company during the period October 22, 2021 to March 31,
2022; and

»  As regards Discretionary Requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company has complied with items C and E.

Other Matters and Restriction on use

This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to comply with its obligations
under the Listing Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, I do not accept or assume any
liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without my
prior consent in writing. I have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

Anand Lavingia

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 26458 C P No.: 11410

Place: Ahmedabad Peer Review Certificate Number: 1589 /2021
Date: August 12, 2022 UDIN: A026458D000789880
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

ANNEXURE E-1

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form No. MR-3
For the financial year ended March 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of,

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Sikko
Industries Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I
hereby report that in my opinion read with Annexure I forming part of this report, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year
ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of:

-

The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made there under as applicable;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv.  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-
a.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Listing
Agreement entered with National Stock Exchange of India Limited; and

v.  The Revised Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules made there under, Regulations, Guidelines
etc. mentioned above, to the extent applicable.

Further company being engaged in the business of manufacturing of fertilizers, pesticides and other agro-chemical products, below are specific
applicable laws to the Company, which require approvals or compliances under the respective laws;

The Essential Commodities Act, 1955;

The Fertilizers (Control) Order, 1985;

The Fertilizers (Movement Control) Order, 1973;

The Insecticides (Price, Stock Display and Submission of Report) Order,1986;
The Insecticides Act, 1968 and the Insecticides Rules, 1971; and

6. The Seeds Act, 1966 and Rules framed thereunder.

SO A

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for system and mechanism framed by the Company for compliances
of the aforesaid specific acts/rules/orders.

During the Period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations and Standards were not applicable to the Company;

i.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 and
circulars/ guidelines/ Amendments issued there under; - the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue & Share Transfer Agent.
However, the Company has appointed Purva Sharegistry (India) Private Limited as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent as per the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

ii. Compliance Requirement in respects of Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the period starting from April 1, 2021 to October 21, 2021, since during this time the
Company was listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited;

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009);

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 and circulars/ guidelines/ Amendments
issued there under;
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v.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014);

vi. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 and circulars/ guidelines/ Amendments issued there
under; and

vii. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

I further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director, Independent Directors and Woman
Director in accordance with the act. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.
I further report that -

There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that -

During the audit period, the Listing of Equity Shares of the Company have been migrated from Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of
India Limited and admitted to the Main Board of National Stock Exchange of India Limited with effective from October 22, 2021.

Anand Lavingia

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 26458 C P No.: 11410

Place: Ahmedabad Peer Review Certificate Number: 1589 /2021
Date: August 12, 2022 UDIN: A026458D000789891

Note: This Report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure I, which form integral part of this report.

Annexure I

To,

The Members of,

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on
these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents
of secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis, on the records and documents provided by the Management of the Company,
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices followed by me provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

3. Inrespect of laws, rules and regulations other than those specifically mentioned in my report above, including the laws, rules and regulations
mentioned in Annexure II, I have limited my review, analysis and reporting up to process and system adopted by the Company for
compliance with the same and have not verified detailed compliance, submissions, reporting under such laws etc. nor verified correctness
and appropriateness thereof including financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards and its proper and adequate
presentation and submission in prescribed formats is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis and not its one to one contents.

6.  The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to compliance in totality or the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Anand Lavingia

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 26458 C P No.: 11410

Place: Ahmedabad Peer Review Certificate Number: 1589 /2021
Date: August 12, 2022 UDIN: A026458D000789891
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

ANNEXURE E-2

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT
SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

I, Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia, Practicing Company Secretary, have examined:

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Sikko Industries Limited (“the Company”),

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the Company to the stock exchange,

(c) website of the Company and

(d) all other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this certification,

for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of;

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued
thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”);

—
N
~

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include;

-

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;
ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
iii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

iv. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

V. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

Vi. circulars/ guidelines/ Amendments issued thereunder,
and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period;

(a) The Company has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder to the extent

applicable and in the manner prescribed, except in respect of matters specified below;

Compliance Requirement

Sr. (Regulations/ circulars / S E Observations/ Remarks of the
eviations
No. guidelines including specific Practicing Company Secretary
clause)
- Nil Nil Nil

(b) The Company has maintained proper records under the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder

insofar as it appears from my examination of those records.

—
g
~

The following are the details of actions taken against the Company / its promoters/ directors/ material subsidiaries either by SEBI or by
Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through various circulars) under the aforesaid Acts/

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder:

S Details of action taken E.g. Observations/ remarks of the
r.
N Action taken by Details of violation fines, warning letter, Practicing Company Secretary,
o.
debarment, etc. if any.
- Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(d) The Company has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Observations made in

Observations of the Practicing Comments of the Practicing

Sr. . the secretarial Actions taken by the
Company Secretary in the ] . Company Secretary on the
No. . compliance report for Company, if any .
previous reports* actions taken by the Company
the year ended
- Nil Nil Nil Nil

* This being First Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the Company, reporting of and actions taken by the Company for observations of the Practicing
Company Secretary in the previous reports is not applicable.

I further report that, during the review period, following regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India were not applicable
to the Company, since there were no such instances occurred during the review period that requires the compliance under the said regulations;

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014);

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009);

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(e) Compliance Requirement in respects of Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-
regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations And
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the period starting from April 1, 2021 to October 21, 2021, since during this time, the
Company was listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

(f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (erstwhile Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Requlations, 2013), and

(g) and circulars/ guidelines/ Amendments issued thereunder.

Anand Sureshbhai Lavingia

Practicing Company Secretary

ACS No.: 26458 CP No.: 11410

Place: Ahmedabad Peer Review Certificate Number: 1589 /2021
Date: May 21, 2022 UDIN: A026458D000358746
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The discussion hereunder covers Company’s performance and its business outlook for the future. This outlook is based on assessment of the
current business environment and Government policies. The change in future economic and other developments are likely to cause variation in
this outlook.

GLOBAL ECONOMY:

Global economy has shown a bounce back in year 2021 after contraction and stress due to COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. According to International
Monetary Fund (IMF), global real GDP growth rebounded to 6.1% in year 2021 from 3.1% contraction in year 2020. Wide vaccination coverage,
accommodative fiscal policies and relaxation on restriction have helped in increased consumer spending and industrial activity picked up in most
economies. The rise in fiscal spending and accommodative monetary policies globally further supported this recovery.

The longer than expected conflict between Ukraine and Russia, which started in February 2022, is expected to weaken the economic recovery,
apart from creating one of the largest humanitarian tragedies. This conflict has also pushed up the price of crude oil and commodities, disrupted
the supply of agri-inputs and food, and aggravated the inflationary environment across the world. Food security has become a priority for
national governments worldwide which is leading to higher demand for quality agri-inputs.

INDIAN ECONOMY:

The start of FY 2021-22 was subdued with the surge of the second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic. However, the economy did not completely
lose momentum as lockdowns were localised and government actions were proactive. This was followed by a massive push towards vaccination
that helped to contain severity of any subsequent wave of the pandemic.

India’s large domestic economy coupled with the government’s enormous public spending, both in the form of planned outlays and direct benefit
transfers, led to liquidity infusion into the economy, and helped the country consistently grow. Despite global supply chain disruptions and
looming uncertainty about the possible resurgence of COVID-19 infections across many parts of the world, domestic macroeconomic conditions
diverged from the global configuration and the Indian economy achieved a real GDP expansion of 8.7% in FY 2021-22.

Though economic parameters have gained ground, rising inflation has been a consistent worry. The India’s Consumer Price Index (CPI) jumped
to a 17-month high of 6.95% in March 2022. (Source: International Monetary Fund)

OUTLOOK:

India’s economic growth in FY 2022-23 will be supported by widespread vaccine coverage, massive public sector spending, easing of regulations,
robust export growth, and the availability of fiscal space to ramp up capital spending for several key sectors.

According to the RBI estimates, India’s GDP is projected to grow in real terms by 7.2% in the next fiscal year. However, the situation created by
the Russia-Ukraine conflict is likely to drag this down to some extent. India’s unique geopolitical advantage and its strong economic growth
afford a certain degree of stability amidst international volatility. Inflation will continue to be main concern and the RBI has already increased
policy rates to counter inflation and modified its accommodative stance.

Indian government has accelerated its reforms initiatives like Production Linked Incentives (PLI) schemes and increased infrastructure spending
to support the industry. This will provide resilient demand in economy and its ripple effect on other aspects of the economy, such as employment
and productivity, will bring India back on track in its medium- to long-term economic objective.

INDIAN AGROCHEMICAL SECTOR:

India is the fourth largest producer of agrochemicals in the world - after USA, Japan and China. The Indian agrochemicals industry was valued
ataround USD 5.72 billion in the financial year 2020-21, almost equally accounted for by domestic consumption (approximately USD 2.72 billion)
and exports (approximately USD 3.00 billion). It is expected to grow at a CAGR of 8-10% till 2025. The Indian industry has two major advantages
- relatively low manufacturing costs and the ability and expertise in efficient handling of toxic and hazardous products and processes.

Globally, India is the fifth largest exporter of agrochemicals. Availability of technically trained manpower, seasonal domestic demand and
production capacities for generics built to cater to overseas markets are the other reasons for strong exports. India has been attracting
multinationals due to good domestic growth opportunities. Domestic segment has been witnessing a steady increase in market acceptance of new
generation molecules.

The sector has a huge potential for growth by virtue of research, innovation and a speedy registration system. By 2024, exports are seen growing
to US$ 3.1 billion, contributing 55% of total domestic production which is expected to be valued at US$ 5.7 billion.

INDUSTRY DRIVERS:
The key factors of driving the agrochemical industry are:

v With the growing population there is an increase in the need to fulfil the demand for food sufficiency and food security. This continues to
drive the growth of agrochemicals industry.

v With fewer arable acres per capita, agrochemicals are becoming more important in maximizing farmer yields; arable land is projected to
shrink from half an acre per person now to less than one-third of an acre per person by 2050.

v Plant diseases and pests have become more common as a result of changing environmental conditions. Also, climate fluctuations have a
substantial impact on crop productivity

COMPANY OVERVIEW:

Established in 2000, Sikko Industries Limited (“SIL” or the Company) is a leading Agrochemical Company in India. The Company's strength lies
in manufacturing formulations. The Company has two manufacturing unit i.e. Fertilizer and Pesticide unit is located at the outskirts of the
Ahmedabad city on Sanand Highway and thus enjoys the good connectivity with different parts of the states, which makes the movements of
the raw-material as well as our products easy and comfortable. Thus it helps in procurement of raw material and dispatch of our products to the
various clients. We have well equipped research and Development facility to improve quality of the products and to produce high performance
growth promoters, pesticides and fertilizer. Company has in house sound R&D Department backed by technical expertise of our Managing
Director Mr. Jayantibhai Kumbhani which helps the company to enhance our product range. We offer special and exclusive range of
agrochemicals including organic pesticides, organic fertilizers and others. Such diverse product mix helps us to cater the diverse customer
segments and to various sectors of Industry. The product mix helps us to sustain the growth level. Over the years we have developed various
products which is used by farmer in agriculture. All products that dispatch from the factory premises are inspected by the packing and dispatch
department. Further, quality check is done at every stage of manufacturing to ensure the adherence to desired specifications. Since, our Company
is dedicated towards quality of products, processes and inputs; we get repetitive orders from our buyers, as we are capable of meeting their
quality standards, which enables them to maintain their brand image in the market.
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

Opportunities:

o  Government initiative to promote agriculture industry will help our industry to grow

o  Continues development in R&D work resulting into yielding of new product

o  Abundant water, electricity and subsidies to farmer by government will help the agriculture industry to grow
Threats:

o  Change in Government policies

o  New entrants in the market and intense competition by existing players

o  Technology may become obsolete due to Innovation in Technology

o  The generic threat of economic slowdown exits, which may subdue the domestic demand for the products
o  Fluctuations in Raw Material prices

o  Unfavourable weather conditions

RISK AND CONCERNS:

A well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation
process is in place. The objective of the mechanism is to minimize the impact of risks identified and taking advance actions to mitigate it. The
mechanism works on the principles of probability of occurrence and impact, if triggered. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify,
evaluate, monitor and manage both business and non-business risks.

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE:
The Company’s operation predominantly comprises of only one segment. In view of the same, separate segmental information is not required to
be disclosed as per the requirement of Indian Accounting Standard 108 Operating Segment.

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review, the Company has earned total income of X 5124.34 Lakh as against the total income of X 4157.26 Lakh of previous
year which states 23.26% increase in the total income as compared to previous year. The profit before tax in the financial year 2021-22 stood at ¥
261.01 Lakh as compared to profit of ¥ 365.87 Lakh for last year and net profit after tax stood at ¥ 187.70 Lakh compared to profit of ¥ 259.82 Lakh
for the previous year which state 27.76% decrease in profit of the Company.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO:

Details of key financial ratios of the Company, changes therein as compared to previous financial year along with explanations for those ratios
where change is 25% or more are as under:

Key Ratios Units 201:2';{_ '22 201;':_ '21 % :)rf I({::I:;f)lge Explanations
Debtors Turnover Times 248 1.95 27.40% Due to Increase in Trade Receivables
Inventory Turnover Times 5.68 3.88 46.24% Due to Increase In Inventory
Interest Coverage Ratio =~ Times 6.96 15.96 (55.92%) Due to increase in the cost of borrowing
Current Ratio Times 223 1.70 31.22% Due to Lesser CL
Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.08 0.35 78.00% Due to repayment of Debt
Operating Profit % 6.18 9.95 (37.91%) Due to reduction in the Profit Margin of the Company
Margin
Net Profit Margin % 3.68 6.55 (43.85%) Due to increase in the production cost
Return on Net Worth % 8.87 13.47 (34.16%) Due to increase in the production cost

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has a proper and adequate system of Internal Controls to commensurate with the size and nature of its operations to ensure that
all assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposal, safeguarding true and fair reporting and compliance with all applicable
regulatory laws and company policies. Internal Audit Reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The Company believes that human resource is the most important assets of the organization. It is not shown in the corporate balance sheet, but
influences appreciably the growth, progress, profits and the shareholders’ values. During the year your company continued its efforts aimed at
improving the HR policies and processes to enhance its performance. The vision and mission of the company is to create culture and value system
and behavioral skills to insure achievement of its short- and long-term objectives. As on March 31, 2022, the Company had total 32 full time
employees. The industrial relations have remained harmonious throughout the year.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statement made in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates, expectations
may be “Forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ from those
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting demand
supply and price conditions in the markets in which the company operates changes in the government regulations, tax laws & other statutes and
other incidental factors.

Annual Report 2021-22| 39



SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO MEMBERS OF

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income) and Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in
Equity for the period ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as the
“financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view inconformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the
profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

There are no Key Audit Matters Reportable as per SA 701 issued by ICAL
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the above reports, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and determine the actions under the applicable laws and regulations.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements, or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

>  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section
143(11) of the Act, we give in “ Annexure A”, a statement on the matter specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired under provisions of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief where necessary for the purposes
of our audit;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of
those books;

c¢) The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of
Changes of Equity dealt with this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statement comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of Act, read with
relevant rule issued thereunder.

e)  On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022, taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.
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f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and operating effectiveness of
such controls, referred to our separate report in “ Annexure B”.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the
Act, as amended:

h)  Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

i)  With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial position in its financial statements
- Refer Note (vii) of Annexure - A to the financial statements

b) The Company did not have any long-term and derivative contracts as at March 31, 2022.

c)  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

d) The management has;

i.  represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the Note No. 35 to the financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

e  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or

e  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii. represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief as disclosed in the Note No. 36 to the financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

e  directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or

e  provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

iii. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-

statement.

e) The company has not neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year under Section 123 of the Act.

For DGMS & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0112187W

Shashank P. Doshi

Partner
Place: Jamnagar M. No. 108456
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SIKKO INDUSTRIES
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best
of our knowledge and belief, we state as under:

i Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

C) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; any material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification and if so, the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us the title deeds of all the immovable properties. (Other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are
held in the name of the company.

e) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the
year.
f) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. Inventory and working capital:

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, inventory
has been physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals, except stock lying with third parties.
Confirmations of such stocks with third parties have been obtained by the Company in most of the cases. No discrepancies were noticed
on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, that has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of

the Company.
iii. Investments, any guarantee or security or advances or loans given:
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the

Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year, hence reporting under clauses 3(iii)(1),
(3), (4), (5), and (6) of the Orders are not applicable for the year under report.

b) In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

iv. Loan to directors:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, the Company has not given
any loans, or provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to loans given and investments made.

V. Deposits:

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 or any relevant provisions of the 2013
act and the rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Vi. Maintenance of Cost Records:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it (and/ or services provided by it). We have broadly
reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the Maintenance
of Cost Record under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,2013 and are of the Opinion that Prima Facie, the prescribed accounts have
been made and maintained.
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vii. Statutory Dues:

a) The company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of Customs, GST, Cess and any other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, sales tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess were in

arrears, as at 31/03/22 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of sales tax, income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, GST, excise

duty and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except the following.

Nature of Amount (" In Period to which the X X i
Name of the Status Forum where dispute is pending
Dues Lakh) amount relates

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 254.40 E.Y.2011-12 to F.Y. 2014-15 Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 4.79 April 2015 to January 2016 Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 418 February 2016 to June 2017 Customs, Excise & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

viii.  Disclosure of Undisclosed Transactions:

There According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax

assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
ix. Loans or Other Borrowings:

a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not defaulted in

repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
<) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used

during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person

on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

X. Money Raised by IPOs, FPOs:

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year

and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or

partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. Fraud:

a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of

fraud by the company or no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit an and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of this

report), while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.
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xii.

xiii.

XVi.

xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

xxi.

Nidhi Company:
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Para 3 of clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.
Related Party Transactions:

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Ind-AS.

Internal Audit System:
In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during the year and till date, in

determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.
Non-cash Transactions:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order

is not applicable.
Registration under section 45-IA of RBI Act, 1934:

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting

under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

Cash losses:

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.
Resignation of statutory auditors:

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

Material uncertainty on meeting liabilities:

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
Compliance of CSR:

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company, the company
has not required to spent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as per the section 135 of companies” act, 2013, reporting

under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
Qualifications Reporting In Group Companies:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures, so reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
ForDGMS & Co,,

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0112187W

Shashank P. Doshi
Partner

Place: Jamnagar M. No. 108456
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF SIKKO INDUSTRIES
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (‘the Company') as of March 31, 2022
in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial control with reference to financial statement of SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED (‘the Company”) as of
March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statement of the company at and for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAL

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 'Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'ICAT').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company;

b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

c) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

ForDGMS & Co,,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 0112187W

Shashank P. Doshi

Partner

Place: Jamnagar M. No. 108456
Date: May 30, 2022 UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L51909G]J2000PLC037329
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(R In Lakh)
Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
A ASSETS

1 Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 325.94 327.78 344 .44

(b) Other Intangible Assets 2 1.95 212 4.88
(c) Financial Assets

i. Loan 3 11.01 10.10 10.10

Total Non-Current Assets 338.91 339.99 359.41

2 Current Assets
(a) Inventories 4 730.08 1066.58 975.55
(b) Financial Assets

i. Trade Receivables 5 1,966.90 2,147.30 1,926.33
ii. Cash and cash Equivalents 6 20.29 13.60 42.92
iii. Loan 7 4.51 168.41 62.62
(c) Other Current Assets 8 608.89 508.90 525.17
Total Current Assets 3,330.67 3,904.79 3,532.59
Total Assets (1+2) 3,669.58 4,244.78 3,892.00
B  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1  Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 9 1,120.00 1,120.00 560.00
(b) Other Equity 10 996.97 809.26 1,113.94
Total Equity 2,116.97 1,929.26 1,673.94
2 Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 11 58.77 13.14 28.66
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 0.70 5.35 8.80
Total Non-Current Liabilities 59.47 18.49 37.46
3 Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 12 104.89 664.89 620.26
ii. Trade Payables 13 573.35 948.08 898.44
(b) Provisions 14 517 9.58 159.42
(c) Income/ Current tax liabilities (Net) 15 40.44 38.41 -
(d) Other current liabilities 16 769.29 636.07 502.47
Total Current Liabilities 1,493.14 2,297.03 2,180.59
Total Liabilities 1,552.61 2,315.52 2,218.05
Total 3,669.58 4,244.78 3,892.00
Significant Accounting Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
As per our report on even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For, DG M S & Co. For, Sikko Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0112187W
Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587807 DIN: 00587855
Shashank P. Doshi
Partner
M. No. 108456
UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055 Ankita Lunagariya Mukesh Shah
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Date: May 30, 2022
Place: Jamnagar Date: May 30, 2022 Place: Ahmedabad

Annual Report 2021-22| 47



SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L51909G]J2000PLC037329
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

R In Lakh)
o Nowno,  [riheratended  Tortheyarnid
Income
1 Revenue from Operations 17 5102.64 3965.81
I Other Income 18 21.69 191.45
III  Total Revenue (I + II) 5124.34 4157.26
IV Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 19 3857.70 2915.71
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock- 20 (13.33) 10.35
in-Trade
Employee benefits expenses 21 294.92 265.42
Finance Costs 22 54.26 28.75
Depreciation and Amortization expense 23 62.51 59.55
Other Expenses 24 607.27 511.61
Total Expenses 4863.33 3791.39
\'% Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional items & Tax (III-V) 261.01 365.87
VII  Exceptional Items - -
VIII  Profit/(Loss) before Tax 261.01 365.87
IX  Tax Expenses:
(1) Current tax 77.95 109.50
(2) Deferred tax (4.65) (3.45)
(3) MAT Credit - -
X Profit/(Loss) for the year 187.70 259.82
Other Comprehensive Income
A. (i) Items that will not reclassified to Profit or Loss = -
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit - -
or Loss
B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
(i) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or - -
Loss
Total of Comprehensive Income = -
X1 Profit/(Loss) after other Comprehensive Income 187.70 259.82
VIII  Earnings per Equity Share: (Continuing Operation)
(1) Basic 1.68 4.49
(2) Diluted 1.68 4.49
Significant Accounting Policies 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
As per our report on even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For, DG M S & Co. For, Sikko Industries Limited

Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0112187W

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani

Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587807 DIN: 00587855
Shashank P. Doshi
Partner
M. No. 108456
UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055 Ankita Lunagariya Mukesh Shah
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 30, 2022
Place: Jamnagar Date: May 30, 2022 Place: Ahmedabad
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L51909GJ2000PLC037329
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 261.01 365.87
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 62.51 59.55
Stamp duty for Increase in Capital - (4.50)
Interest Income (0.35) 0.77)
Finance Cost 54.26 116.42
116.42 83.03
Operating Profit before working capital changes 37743 448.90
Changes in Working Capital:
Trade Receivables 180.39 (220.96)
Other Loans and advances receivables 163.90 (310.13)
Inventories 336.50 (91.03)
Trade Payables (374.73) 49.64
Other Current Liabilities and other assets 33.23 148.37
Short term Provisions (2.37) 108.84
336.92 (315.27)
Net Cash Flow from Operation 714.35 133.63
Tax Paid 77.95 109.50
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 636.40 24.13
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets (60.51) (40.13)
Movement in Loan & Advances 0.92) -
Interest Income 0.35 0.77
(61.08) (39.75)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (61.08) (39.75)
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Issue of shares capital - -
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing (Net) 45.63 (15.53)
Short Term Borrowing (Net) (560.00) 30.19
Interest paid (54.26) (28.75)
Dividend paid (including DDT) - -
(568.63) (14.09)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) (568.63) (14.09)
D Net (Decrease)/Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 6.69 (29.32)
E Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 13.60 42.92
F Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 20.29 13.60
G Cash And Cash Equivalents Comprise:
Cash 0.86 424
Bank Balance:
Current Account 17.14 4.63
Deposit Account 2.29 4.72
Total 20.29 13.60

As per our report on even date attached
For, DG M S & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN No. 0112187W

Shashank P. Doshi

Partner

M. No. 108456

UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055

Date: May 30, 2022
Place: Jamnagar

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For, Sikko Industries Limited

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Managing Director
DIN: 00587807

Ankita Lunagariya
Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2022

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani

Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587855

Mukesh Shah
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Ahmedabad
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SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L51909GJ2000PLC037329
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LTD

Equity Share Capital (" in Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Outstanding at the Beginning of the year 1120.00 560.00 560.00
Issued during the year - 560.00 -

Total 1120.00 1120.00 560.00

Other Equity

(" in Lakh)
Particulars Securities Premium Retained Earnings Other CI;TOP;ZhenSive Total
Balance at the beginning of 305.39 808.55 - 1,113.94
reporting Period i.e. April 1, 2020
Add: Profit of the year - 259.82 - 259.82
Less: Issue of Bonus Equity Shares 305.39 254.61 - 560.00
Less: Bonus Issue Expenses - 4.50 - 4.50
Less: Other Written off - (0.00) - (0.00)
Balance at the closing of reporting - 809.26 - 809.26
Period i.e. March 31, 2021

(" in Lakh)
Particulars Securities Premium Retained Earnings Sibes C&Tg;ihemive Total
Balance at the beginning of - 809.26 - 809.26
reporting Period i.e. April 1, 2021
Add: Profit of the year - 187.70 - 187.70
Less: Issue of Bonus Equity Shares - - - -
Balance at the closing of reporting - 996.97 - 996.97

Period i.e. March 31, 2022

As per our report on even date attached
For, DGM S & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN No. 0112187W

Shashank P. Doshi

Partner

M. No. 108456

UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055

Date: May 30, 2022
Place: Jamnagar

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For, Sikko Industries Limited

Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani
Managing Director
DIN: 00587807

Ankita Lunagariya
Company Secretary

Date: May 30, 2022

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani

Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587855

Mukesh Shah

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Ahmedabad
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022

Note 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.0 Corporate Information

SIKKO INDUSTRIES LIMITED is a Limited Company, incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and having CIN:
L51909GJ2000PLC037329. The Company is engaged in the business of Manufacturing and trading & Exporting of Bio-Agro chemicals, Pesticides,
Fertilizers, Seeds, Sprayers, Packaging, Machineries and FMCG products etc. The Registered office at 508, Iscon Eligance, Nr. Jain Temple Nr.
Prahladnagar Pick up Stand, Vejalpur, Ahmedabad - 380051.

1.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements
a. Accounting Convention:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, i.e. Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind
AS') notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015. The Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared on historical cost
convention, except in case of certain financial instruments which are recognized at fair value.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in the Part I of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

b. Functional and Presentation Currency:

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes are rounded off to lakhs the nearest INR rupee in compliance with Schedule III
of the Act, unless otherwise stated.

The functional and presentation currency of the company is Indian rupees. This financial statement is presented in Indian rupees. Due to
rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely
reflect the absolute figures.

c¢. Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015.

d. Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the Ind AS financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles in India requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as of the Balance Sheet date,
reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosure of contingent labilities and contingent assets as of the date of Balance
Sheet. The estimates and assumptions used in these Ind AS financial statements are based on management's evaluation of the relevant facts
and circumstances as of the date of the Ind AS financial statements. The actual amounts may differ from the estimates used in the preparation
of the Ind AS financial statements and the difference between actual results and the estimates are recognized in the period in which the
results are known/materialize.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods affected.

Particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial Statement are as below:

1. Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets/Liabilities;
2. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
3 Provisions and Contingencies;
4.  Provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions;
5. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities
6 Valuation of Financial Instruments;
e.  Current versus Non-Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset / liability is treated as current when it is:-
i.  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed or settled in normal operating cycle.
ii.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
iii. Expected to be realised / settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or.

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

v.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
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1.2 Accounting Policies:
(A) Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Cost includes purchase price, non-recoverable taxes and duties, labour cost and direct overheads for self-constructed assets and other direct
costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided on the Written Down Value method (W.D.V.) over the estimated useful lives of the assets considering the nature,
estimated usage, operating conditions, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and
maintenance support. The Company provides pro-rata depreciation from the day the asset is put to use and for any asset sold, till the date
of sale.

Projects under commissioning and other Capital work-in-progress are carried at cost comprising of direct and indirect costs, related
incidental expenses and attributable interest. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation
are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment is included in profit or loss.

(B) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, accumulated amortization, and impairment losses, if any. Such
costs include purchase price, borrowing cost, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and cost can be measured reliably.

The amortisation period for intangible assets with finite useful lives is reviewed at each year-end. Changes in expected useful lives are
treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Internally generated intangible asset Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of directly attributable expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria to the completion of its development.

Product development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. Amortisation is not recorded
on product in progress until development is complete.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an Intangible Asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

(C) Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

(D) Leases
As a lessee:
The Company has applied IND AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

As Lessor:

At the inception of a lease, the lease arrangement is classified as either a finance lease or an operating lease, based on contractual terms &
substance of the lease arrangement. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s net investment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(E) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).

The Company has identified its Managing Director as CODM who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and makes strategic decisions.

The Company is operating in single business segments. Hence, reporting requirement of Segment reporting is not arise.
(F) Statement of Cash flow

Cash Flows of the Group are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a
noncash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing Cash Flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(G) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of up to three
month that are readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(H) Inventories

Inventories includes raw material, semi-finished goods, stock -in -trade, finished goods, stores & spares, consumables, packing materials,
goods for resale and material in transit are valued at lower of cost and net

Raw Material and Components - Cost include cost of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Value Cost is determined on First-In-First-Out basis.

Finished/Semi-Finished Goods - Cost includes cost of direct material, labor, other direct cost (Including variable costs) and a proportion of
fixed manufacturing overheads allocated based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on
First-In-First-Out basis.

Stock-in-trade - Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions.
Cost is determined on First-In-First-Out basis.

Stores, Spare Parts, Consumables, Packing Materials etc. - Cost is determined on on First-In-First-Out basis.
Goods for Resale - valuation Cost is determined on First-In-First-Out basis.

Realizable Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale. Adequate allowance is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.

(I) Foreign Currency Transactions
1. Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between
the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

2. Subsequent Recognition

As at the reporting date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. All non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period. Exchange differences on restatement of
all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Any subsequent events occurring after the Balance Sheet date up to the date of the approval of the financial statement of the Company by
the board of directors on 30th May, 2022 have been considered, disclosed and adjusted, if changes or event are material in nature wherever
applicable, as per the requirement of Ind AS.
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(J) Income Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Current tax: -

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax:-

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements.

Deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

(K) Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions:

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date
and are discounted to its present value as appropriate.

Contingent Liabilities:

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present
obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a contingent liability.

(L) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized when (or as) the Company satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the
customer obtains control of that asset.

When (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, the Company recognizes as revenue the amount of the transaction price (excluding
estimates of variable consideration) that is allocated to that performance obligation.

The Company applies the five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

i.  Identification of contract(s) with customers;

ii. Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

iii. Determination of transaction price;

iv.  Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and

v.  Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.
(M) Other income:

Interest: Interest income is calculated on effective interest rate, but recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable.

Dividend: Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
(N) Finance Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Based on borrowings
incurred specifically for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred
for the asset.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
the interest cost.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period for which they are incurred.
(O) Earnings per share (EPS):

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding are considered
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Earnings considered in ascertaining the EPS is the net profit for the period
and any attributable tax thereto for the period.
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(P) Employee benefits

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the
contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognises contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense
when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity

Gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. Provision for gratuity is calculated on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out at
balance sheet date and is charged to the statement of profit and loss. The actuarial valuation is performed using the projected unit credit
method. Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

(Q) Fair Value Measurement:

The Company measures financial instruments such as investments in quoted share, certain other investments etc. at fair value at each Balance
Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Level 1-  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2-  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3-  Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

(R) Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial assets:
Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other
than trade receivables and other specific assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets, other than equity instruments, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

i.  The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
ii.  The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers rights
to receive cash flows from an asset, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Financial Liabilities:
Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable cost. Financial
liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one
year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. Changes in
the amortised value of liability are recorded as finance cost.

De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(S) Global Health Pandemic COVID - 19

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant slow disturbance and slowdown of economic
activity. The company has evaluated impact of this pandemic on its business operations and based on its review and current indicators for
future economic conditions, there is no significant impact on its financial statements.
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1.3 Recent Pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On 23rd March, 2022, MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from 1st April, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments specify that the excess of net sale proceeds of items produced while the Company is preparing the asset for its intended
use over its cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but shall be deducted from the directly attributable costs
considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact
in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired, and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These
changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the “10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise
a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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Note 3: Non-current Loans

(X In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Secured, Considered good
a) Security Deposits = -
b) Loan to Promoter/Directors/ Associate Company/Subsidiary - -
Company/Group Company
c) Other - -
Unsecured, Considered good
a) Security Deposits 11.01 10.10 10.10
b) Loan to Promoter/Directors/ Associate Company/Subsidiary - -
Company/Group Company
c) Other - -
Total 11.01 10.10 10.10
Note 4: Inventories
(X In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
a. Raw Material and components 293.08 677.40 598.99
(valued at lower of cost or NRV as per FIFO Method)
b. Work-in-Progress - - -
(valued at estimated cost)
c. Finished goods 339.31 325.98 336.33
(valued at lower of cost or NRV)
d. Packing Material 97.69 63.20 40.23
(valued at lower of cost or NRV as per FIFO Method)
Total 730.08 1,066.58 975.55
Note 5: Current Trade Receivables
® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
a) Secured, Considered good - - -
b) Unsecured, Considered good
Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered good
Less than 6 Months 302.99 450.93 346.74
6 Months - 1 Year 327.25 515.35 616.43
01 - 02 Year 147.22 708.61 500.85
02 - 03 Year 390.01 171.79 173.37
More than 3 Years 799.43 300.62 288.94
¢) Doubtful - - -
Less: Allowance for bed and doubtful debts - - -
1,966.90 2,147.30 1,926.33
Further classified
a) Allowance for doubtful debts - - -
b) Debts Due by Directors or other officers or group - - -
Total 1,966.90 2,147.30 1,926.33
Note 6: Cash and Cash Equivalents
® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
a) Balances with Banks
Bank of India 2.86 1.13 10.19
ICICI Bank 14.28 3.50 2218
b) Cheques, drafts on hand - - -
c¢) Cash on hand 0.86 424 5.98
d) Other bank balance:
Fixed Deposits 2.29 472 4.57
Total 20.29 13.60 42,92
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® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Secured, Considered good
a) Security Deposits - - -
b) Loan to Promoter/Directors/ Associate Company/Subsidiary - - -
Company/Group Company
c) Other advances - - -
Unsecured, Considered good
a) Security Deposits 1.05 1.05 1.05
b) Loan to Promoter/Directors/ Associate Company/Subsidiary - -
Company/Group Company
c) Other advances:
Advance to Creditors - 162.16 54.55
Advance to Employees 3.46 520 7.02
Total 4.51 168.41 62.62
Note 8: Other Current Assets
® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Secured, Considered good
a) Security Deposits - - -
b) Loan to Promoter/Directors/ Associate Company/Subsidiary - - -
Company/Group Company
¢) Other advances - - -
Unsecured, Considered good
a) Security Deposits - - -
b) Loan to Promoter/Directors/ Associate Company/Subsidiary - - -
Company/Group Company
c) Balance with Government Authorities 604.21 505.08 521.02
d) Other advances:
Prepaid Expenses 4.68 3.82 415
Total 608.89 508.90 525.17
Note 9: Equity Share Capital
(% In Lakh)
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Share Capital
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised:
Equity Shares of X 10/- each 12000000  1200.00 12000000  1200.00 6000000  600.00
Issued:
Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 11200000  1120.00 11200000  1120.00 5600000  560.00
Subscribed & Paid-up
Equity Shares of X 10/ - each fully paid 11200000  1120.00 11200000  1120.00 5600000  560.00
Total 11200000  1120.00 11200000 1120.00 5600000 560.00
Note 9.1: Reconciliation of Number of Shares
(% In Lakh)
As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Particulars
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 11200000  1120.00 5600000 560.00 5600000  560.00
Shares issued during the year - - 5600000 560.00 - -
Shares bought back during the year - - - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 11200000  1120.00 11200000  1120.00 5600000  560.00
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Note 9.2: Details of shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Name of Shareholder No. of % of No. of % of No. of % of
Sh; rle; Holding Sh}? rf; Holding Sh}a: r;:; Holding
e e e
Mr. Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani 3054084 27.27 3054084 27.27 1527042 27.27
Mr. Pravinbhai M. Kumbhani 1118640 9.99 1118640 9.99 559320 9.99
Mrs. Alpaben J. Kumbhani 721480 6.44 721480 6.44 360740 6.44
Mr. Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani 212300 1.90 212300 1.90 385150 6.88
Mrs. Nandaben G. Kumbhani 661480 591 661480 591 330740 591
Mr. Mohanbhai N. Kumbhani 680000 6.07 680000 6.07 340000 6.07
* Changes in Promoter Holding is shown in Note No. 43 of Significant Accounting Policy.
Note 10: Other Equity
 In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
A. Securities Premium Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet - 305.39 305.39
Add: Securities Premium credited on Shares issue - - -
Less: Premium utilized for various reasons:

For Bonus issue during the year - 305.39 -
Closing Balance - - 305.39
B. Retained Earnings
As per last Balance Sheet 809.26 808.55 565.18
Add: Net Profit/ (Net Loss) for the Current year 187.70 259.82 243.53
Less: Income Tax Expenses write off - - 0.17

Adjustment in F.A. as per the Companies Act, 2013 - - -

Other written off - (0.00) -

Bonus Issue Expense - 4.50 -

Bonus Issue during the year - 254.61 -
Closing Balance 996.97 809.26 808.55
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

As per Last Balance Sheet - - -
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year - - -
Closing Balance - - -
Total 996.67 809.26 1,113.94
Note 11: Non-Current Borrowings
® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Secured:
Term Loans
From Banks:
Term Loan 37.13 - -
Car Loans 21.64 13.14 28.66
Sub-total (a) 58.77 13.14 28.66
Unsecured:
Loans and advances from related parties - - -
Sub-total (b) - - -
Total 58.77 13.14 28.66

Note 11.1:

Term Loan facility from ICICI Bank is secured by Hypothecation of present and future stock & Book Debts.

Car loans from bank referred above are secured by Hypothecation of Cars.
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Note 12: Current Borrowings
® In Lakh)

Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020

Secured:

Loan payable on demand

From Banks:
Cash Credit - 325.50 321.26

Current Maturities of Long Term Loans

From Banks:

ICICI Term Loan 29.71 89.12 -
Car Loans 21.19 14.45 -
Sub-total (a)+(b) 50.89 429.07 321.26

Unsecured:
Loans and advances from related parties 54.00 235.82 299.00
Sub-total (c) 54.00 235.82 299.00

In case of continuing default as on the balance sheet date in
repayment of loans and interest with respect to (a) (b) & (c)

Period of default - - -
Amount - - -
Total 104.89 664.89 620.26
Note 12.1:
Working Capital loan from bank referred above to the extent of Cash Credit from ICICI Bank is secured by Hypothecation of present and future
stock & Book Debts.

Term Loan facility from ICICI Bank is secured by Hypothecation of present and future stock & Book Debts.
Car loans from bank referred above are secured by Hypothecation of Cars.

Note 13: Current Trade Payables

( In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Due From:
a) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Less than 01 year = - -
01 - 02 Year - - -
02 - 03 Year - - -
More than 3 Years - - -
b) Others
Less than 01 year 265.07 493.00 431.25
01 - 02 Year 186.27 186.27 197.66
02 - 03 Year 68.80 68.80 167.81
More than 3 Years 53.20 53.20 101.72
Total 573.53 948.08 898.44
Note 14: Current Provisions
(X In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Provision for:
a) Employee Benefits
Bonus Payable 3.05 7.25 6.27
b) Others
Electricity burning Expense 0.02 - 1.23
C & F Charges - 0.55 0.52
Security Charges 0.12 0.23 0.26
Telephone Charges 0.08 0.01 0.01
Director Sitting Fees 0.90 0.30 0.60
Audit Fees 1.00 1.23 1.00
Income Tax - - 149.19
Total 5.17 9.58 159.42
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Note 15: Income/Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1, 2020
Opening Balance 38.41 (8.81) 56.04
Add: Provision for the year 77.95 109.50 -
Less: Tax Paid 75.92 62.28 4.61
Total 40.44 38.41 162.96
Note 16: Other Current Liabilities
® In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021 As at April 1,2020
a) Statutory Remittance
TDS Payable 4.63 2.72 13.78
TCS Payable 0.31 0.20 -
GST Payable 265.65 120.96 86.17
EPF Payable 0.52 0.17 -
ESIC Payable 0.04 0.02 -
Professional Tax Payable 0.14 0.13 0.27
b) Advanced from Customer 214.79 248.51 127.27
c) Dealer Deposits 283.22 263.37 260.79
Total 769.29 636.07 488.29
Note 17: Revenue from Operations
 In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Sale of Products 5,079.81 3,909.21
Other Operating Revenue 22.84 56.60
Total 5,102.64 3,965.81
Note 17.1: Particulars of Sale of Products
( In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Manufactured Goods:
Fertilisers 410.92 141.19
Pesticides 4,377.79 3,615.61
Seeds 291.10 152.42
Total 5,079.81 3,909.21
*Branch wise Sales bifurcation is given in Note No. 50 of Notes Forming part of Financial Statements.
Note 17.2: Other Operating Revenue
( In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Reimbursement of C & F Charges 2.08 515
Reimbursement of Marketing Charges 20.76 51.45
Total 22.84 56.60
Note 18: Other Income
(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Interest Income
From Bank FD Deposits 0.35 0.16
From other Deposits 0.29 -
Interest on late goods - 0.62
Other Non-operating Revenues
Kasar Income 0.67 1.03
Duty Drawback Income 0.12 0.40
Rate Difference Income 8.70 18.81
Foreign Exchange Gain or Loss 0.47 -
Late Payment Charges - 166.78
Bed Debts Recovery 9.98 1.34
Machinery Rent Income - 0.12
Office Rent Income - 1.20
Penalty Charges - 0.20
Shortage Material 1.10 0.80
Total 21.69 191.45
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Note 19: Cost of Material Consumed

(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Opening Stock of Raw Materials 677.40 598.99
Add: Purchase of Raw Materials 3,507.85 3,016.85
Closing Stock of Raw Materials 293.08 677.40
Total (A) 3,892.17 2,938.45
Opening Stock of Packing Material Consumed 63.20 40.23
Add: Purchase of Packing Material Consumed 0.01 0.24
Closing Stock of Packing Material Consumed 97.69 63.20
Total (B) (34.47) (22.74)
Total 3,857.70 2,915.71
Note 19.1: Particulars of Cost of Material Consumed
X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Breakup of Raw Material Consumed:
Fertilisers 174.08 93.17
Pesticides 3,463.18 2,743.96
Seeds 254.92 101.32
Others - -
Total (A) 3,892.17 2,938.45
Breakup of Packing Material Consumed:
Fertilisers 7.88 (3.97)
Pesticides (42.35) (19.01)
Seeds - -
Others - 0.24
Total (B) (34.47) (22.74)
Total 3,857.70 2,915.71
Note 20: Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock in Process and WIP
(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 339.31 325.98
Work in Progress - -
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 325.98 336.33
Work in Progress - -
Net (Increase)/Decrease (13.33) 10.35
Note 21: Employee Benefits Expenses
( In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
(a) Salaries and Wages 291.13 258.90
(b) Contributions to Provident Fund & Other Fund:
Provident Fund 3.26 2.45
ESIC 0.36 0.24
(c) Staff welfare Expenses 0.17 3.83
(d) Provision for Gratuity - -
(e) Termination Benefits - -
Total 294.92 265.42
Note 22: Finance Cost
(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
(a) Interest Expense
(i) Borrowings 52.01 28.10
(ii) Interest on TDS 0.31 0.38
(iii) Interest on Professional Tax 0.02 0.11
(iv) Interest on dealer Deposits 0.20 -
(v) Interest on Provident Fund - -
(b) Other Borrowing costs 1.72 0.16
Total 54.26 28.75
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Note 23: Depreciation and Amortization

(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 62.21 59.55
Amortization of Intangible Assets 0.30 0.28
Depreciation on Investment Property - -
Total 62.51 59.83
Note 24: Other Expenses
( In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Manufacturing Expenses:
Loading & Unloading Charges 241 231
Electric Power & Fuel 2.24 0.33
Electric Burning Expense 11.94 12.82
Factory Expense 1.29 1.54
Factory Rent Expense 3.81 2.40
C & F Charges 13.71 21.40
C & F commission Expense 9.95 11.25
Farming & Nursing Expense - 0.26
Field Assistant Expense 221 4.35
Leakage Material 1.25 0.35
Freight & Forwarding Expense 52.04 55.28
Selling & Distribution Expenses
Sales Promotion Expense 35.42 23.07
Sales Commission Expense 219 4.00
Discounts 51.93 81.71
Export Clearing & Forwarding Charges 1.46 -
Establishment Expenses:
Advertisement Expenses 15.61 0.28
Rent Expense 11.27 5.54
Rates & Taxes 522 10.77
Payment To auditor 1.00 1.00
Donation - 0.02
Insurance Expense 7.97 592
Legal & Professional Fees 13.28 10.95
Travelling Conveyance Expense 53.81 39.75
Repairs & Maintenance 18.41 20.69
Communication Expense 423 2.85
Research and Development Cost 9.85 410
Godown Expense 3.40 -
Foreign Exchange Loss - 0.35
Bad Debts Exp. 229.74 159.20
Late Payment Reverse Charges 34.17 7.80
Other Charges - 11.67
Miscellaneous Expense 7.47 9.66
Total 607.27 511.61
Note 24.1: Payment to Auditor as:
(X In Lakh)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
a. Auditor 1.00 1.00
b. for taxation matters - -
c. for Company Law matters - -
d. for Management Services - -
e. for other Services - -
f. for reimbursement of expenses = -
Total 1.00 1.00
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Note 25: The previous year’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts and other disclosures for
the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current annual financial statements and are to be read in relation to the
amounts and other disclosures relating to the current financial year.

Note 26: Credit and Debit balances of unsecured loans, sundry creditors, sundry Debtors, loans and Advances are subject to confirmation and
therefore the effect of the same on profit could not be ascertained.

Note 27: The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment for the current year.

Note 28: There has been no Capital work in progress for the current year of the company.

Note 29: There is no Intangible assets under development in the current year.

Note 30: The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Note 31: Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

Note 32: The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Note 33: No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder.

Note 34: The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

Note 35: The Company has not advanced or loaned to or invested in funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 36: The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall

a. directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b.  Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 37: The Company does not have transaction with the struck off under section 248 of Companies act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies act
1956.

Note 38: The company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of company’s act read with companies
(restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

Note 39: Related Party Disclosures:

The Disclosures of Transaction with the related parties as defined in the related parties as defined in the Accounting Standard are given
below:

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships: -

Sr. No. Nature of Relationships Name of Parties

1. Key Managerial personnel (KMP)  Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani

Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani

Alpaben J. Kumbhani

Mukesh V. Shah

CS Ankita Lunagariya

Mamtaben H. Thumbar

Hasmukhbhai Vavaiya

Rupen ] Patel

2. Associate Concern Sikkon Crop Technology (Prop. Pravinbhai Kumbhani upto July 31, 2021)
Sikkon Crop Technology (Prop. Jayantibhai Kumbhani upto August 01, 2021)

3. Enterprise in which Partners are Pravinbhai M. Kumbhani
relative of KMP

Bhavnaben P. Kumbhani
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Transaction during the current financial year with related parties: -

® In Lakh)
Ofs at the Ofs at the
Sr. Name of Related Nature of Relation Nature of beginning Amount Amount End
No. Parties ature ot Relatlo Transaction Receivable/ Debited Created Receivable/
(Payable) (Payable)
1 Jayantibhai M. Key Managerial ~ Director - 49.50 - -
Kumbhani Person Remuneration
2 Ghanshyambhai Key Managerial ~ Director - 39.00 - -
M. Kumbhani Person Remuneration
3 Jayantibhai M. Key Managerial Loan (166.00) 130.00 - (36.00)
Kumbhani Person Repayment
4 Alpaben J. Key Managerial ~ Director - 6.00 - -
Kumbhani Person Remuneration
5 Sikkon Crop Enterprise in which Purchase 85.26 - -
Techn(?logy (Prop. rela.tive of KMP is C & F Income 110
Jayantibhai having  significant
Kumbhani) interest Marketing 10.98
Income
6 Sikkon Crop Enterprise in which Purchase - 75.17 - -
Tech-nolog.y (Prop. rela_tlve of KMP 5 - & F Income 0.98
Pravinbhai having  significant
Kumbhani) interest Marketing 9.78
Income
7 Bhavnaben P. Enterprise in which Godown Rent - 3.00 - -
Kumbhani relative of KMP is
having  significant
interest
8 Pravinbhai M. Enterprise in which Factory Rent - 3.81 - -
Kumbhani relative of KMP is Expense
having  significant
interest
9 Mukesh V. Shah Chief Financial =~ Salary - 6.48 - -
Officer Expense
10  Ankita Company Secretary Salary - 3.20 - -
Lunagariya Expense
11  Mamtaben H. Independent Director Salary - 0.30 - -
Thumbar Expense
12 Hasmukhbhai Independent Director ~ Salary - 0.30 - -
Vavaiya Expense
13 Rupen ] Patel Independent Director ~ Salary - 0.30 - -
Expense
Note 40: Deferred tax Assets and Liabilities are as under:
Components of which are as under:
(X In Lakh)
Particulars As at March 31,2022  As at March 31, 2021
Deferred Tax
Block of assets ( Depreciation) 2.53 23.87
Net Differed Tax Liability/(Asset) (0.70) (5.35)
Note 41: Earnings Per Share
Particular For the year ended For the year ended
articuiars on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2021
Profit / (Loss) after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (A) 187.70 259.82
Weighted Number of Equity Share outstanding During the year (B) (In Nos.) 1120.00 57.84
Basic Earnings Per Share for each Share of X 10/- (A) / (B) 1.68 449

Note 42: Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
The section 135 (Corporate social responsibility) of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.
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Note 43: Notes forming part of accounts in relation to Micro and small enterprise

Based on information available with the company, on the status of the suppliers being Micro or small enterprises, on which the auditors
have relied, the disclosure requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act,2013 with regard to the payments made/due to Micro
and small Enterprises are given below:

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars on March 31, 2022 on March 31, 2022

Principal Interest Principal Interest

Amount due as at the date of Balance sheet Nil Nil Nil Nil

Amount paid beyond the appointed date during the year Nil Nil Nil Nil

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payments Nil Nil Nil Nil
of principal during the year beyond the appointed date

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at the date of Balance Nil Nil Nil Nil

sheet

The company has initiated the process of obtaining the confirmation from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) but has not received the same in totality. The above
information is compiled based on the extent of responses received by the company from its suppliers.

Note 44: Title deeds of immovable Property
Tittle deeds of immovable property has not been held in the name of promoter, director, or relative of promoter/ director or employee
of promoters / director of the company, hence same are held in the name of the company.

Note 45: Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties
No Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under
Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with any other person.

Note 46: Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
The Company does not have made any arrangements in terms of section 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013, and hence there is no
deviation to be disclosed.

Note 47: Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium: -

As on March 31, 2022 there is no unutilized amount in respect of any issue of securities and long term borrowings from bank and
financial institutions. The borrowed funds have been utilized for the specific purpose for which the funds were raised.

Note 48: Ratio Analysis:

Ratio Numerator Denominator AsatMarch  AsatMarch % of Change Reason for
31, 2022 31, 2021 in Ratio Variance
Current Ratio Current Assets Current 223 1.70 31.22% Due to Lesser CL
Liabilities
Debt Equity Ratio Debt capital Shareholder’s 0.08 0.35 78.00% Due to repayment
Equity of Debt
Debt Service  EBITDA-CAPEX Debt Service 0.08 0.35 78.00% Due to repayment
Coverage Ratio (Int.+ Principal) of Debt
Return on Equity Profit for the year Average 0.17 0.23 (27.76%) Decrease in Profit
Ratio Shareholder’s after Tax
Equity
Inventory COGS Average 5.68 3.88 46.24% Due to Increase In
Turnover Ratio Inventory Inventory
Trade Receivables Net sales Average trade 2.48 1.95 27.40% Due to Increase in
turnover ratio receivables Trade Receivables
Trade payables  Total Purchases Closing Trade 4.61 3.27 41.11% Due to Decrease in
turnover ratio (Fuel Cost + Payables Purchase
Other Expenses +
Closing
Inventory-
Opening
Inventory)
Net capital Sales Working 2.79 2.59 7.85% Due to increase in
turnover ratio capital (CA-CL) sales
Net profit ratio Net Profit Sales 0.04 0.06 (41.39%) Due to increase in
Cost
Return on Capital  Earnings before Capital 0.14 0.20 (29.07%) Due to increase in
employed interest and tax Employed Cost of production
Return on Net Profit Investment - - - -
investment
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Note 49: Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 % Changes
<l Promoter Name During the
No. Year
No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
1 Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani 3054084 27.27% 3054084 27.27% 0.00%
2 Pravinbhai M. Kumbhani 1208000 10.78% 1208000 10.78% 0.00%
3 Alpaben J. Kumbhani 1118640 9.99% 1118640 9.99% 0.00%
4 Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani 721480 6.44% 721480 6.44% 0.00%
5 Nandaben G. Kumbhani 680000 6.07% 680000 6.07% 0.00%
6 Mohanbhai N. Kumbhani 661480 5.91% 661480 5.91% 0.00%
7 Rudiben M. Kumbhani 344016 3.07% 344016 3.07% 0.00%
8 Bhavnaben P. Kumbhani 212300 1.90% 212300 1.90% 0.00%
Note 50: Branch wise Sales bifurcation:
(* in Lakh)
Details Gujarat Rajasthan BAETH ) Maharashtra  Uttar Pradesh ~ West Bengal AN
Pradesh Sales
Sales Account 4,592.98 95.19 46.02 173.50 103.90 80.89 5,092.49
Inter Branch Sales 598.48 5.13 - 108.58 - 50.23 762.42
Total Sales 5,191.47 100.32 46.02 282.08 103.90 131.13 5,854.91
Less: Sales Return 11.23 - 0.04 0.17 0.15 0.83 12.41
Total Sales 11.23 - 0.04 0.17 0.15 0.83 12.41
Return
Less: Credit Note - - - - - - -
Sales Return 0.27 - - - - - 0.27
Credit Note
Rate Diff. - - - - - - -
Total Credit Note 0.27 - - - - - 0.27
Sales as per 5,179.97 100.32 45.98 281.90 103.76 130.30 5,842.23
Balance Sheet
Less Inter Branch Sales 762.42
As per Audit Report Sales 5,079.81

Note 51: Exemption Availed on First time adoption of Ind AS 101

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The
Company has availed the following material exemptions:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets recognized as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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Effects of Ind AS adoption on Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021 and April 1, 2020

(* in Lakh)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 April 1, 2020
e Asper o omaition  Asper  Asper | (TS Asper
IGAAP* to Ind AS IndAS IGAAP* to Ind AS Ind AS
A. ASSETS
1  Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 327.78 - 327.78 344.44 - 344.44
(b) Other Intangible Assets 212 - 212 4.88 - 4.88
(c) Financial Assets
i. Loan 10.10 - 10.10 10.10 - 10.10
Total Non-Current Assets 339.99 - 339.99 359.41 - 359.41
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 1,066.58 - 1,066.58 975.55 - 975.55
(b) Financial Assets
i. Trade Receivables 2,147.30 - 214730 1,926.33 - 1,926.33
ii. Cash and cash Equivalents 13.60 - 13.60 42.92 - 42.92
iii. Loan 893.76 (725.35) 168.41 583.63 - 583.63
(c) Other Current Assets 3.82 505.08 508.90 415 - 415
Total Current Assets  4,125.06 (220.28) 3,904.79  3,532.59 - 3,532.59
TOTAL (1+2)  4,465.06 (220.28) 4,244.78  3,892.00 - 3,892.00
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1  Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 1,120.00 - 1,120.00 560.00 - 560.00
(b) Other Equity 809.26 - 809.26  1,113.94 - 1,113.94
Total Equity  1,929.26 - 192926 1,673.94 - 1,673.94
2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 13.14 - 13.14 28.66 - 28.66
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5.35 - 5.35 8.80 - 8.80
Total Non-Current Liabilities 18.49 - 18.49 37.46 - 37.46
3 Current liabilities -
(a) Financial liabilities -
i. Borrowings 650.44 14.45 664.89 620.26 - 620.26
ii. Trade payable 948.08 - 948.08 898.44 - 898.44
(b) Provisions 268.26 (258.69) 9.58 159.42 - 159.42
(c) Income/Current tax liabilities (net) 38.41 38.41 - - -
(d) Other Current Liabilities 650.52 (14.45) 636.07 502.47 - 502.47
Total Current Liabilities  2,517.31 (220.28) 2,297.03  2,180.59 - 2,180.59
Total Liabilities  4,465.06 (220.28) 4,244.78  2,218.05 - 2,218.05
TOTAL (1+2+3)  4,465.06 (220.28) 4,244.78  3,892.00 - 3,892.00
As per our report on even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
For, DGM S & Co. For, Sikko Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 0112187W
Jayantibhai M. Kumbhani Ghanshyambhai M. Kumbhani
Managing Director Whole-time Director
DIN: 00587807 DIN: 00587855
Shashank P. Doshi
Partner
M. No. 108456
UDIN: 22108456 ANLUJF2055 Ankita Lunagariya Mukesh Shah
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 30, 2022
Place: Jamnagar Date: May 30, 2022 Place: Ahmedabad
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